
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

 JUNE 12, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, June 12, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the Council Chambers.  
           

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members  
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike 
O’Keefe 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - May 8, 2017 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PRESENTATIONS  
 
* A. Public Hearing – Consider Ordinance No. 2017-13 amending Sec. 13-1-55 of the 

Zoning Code to permit the Landmarks Commission and Plan Commission to 
approve outdoor patios enclosed by a pergola or similar fence structure in the 
rear yard setback area for properties in the B-3 Central Business District; and 
action thereon (Plan Comm. 05/01/17) 

 
* B. Consider Resolution No. 2017-12 honoring Summer Sounds; and action thereon 
 
* C. Consider 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and Resolution No. 2017-13 accepting the Report; 
and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 5/11/17) 

 
* D. Presentation of Adlai Horn Park Restoration Plan; and action thereon (Parks, 

Recreation & Forestry Board – 2016-2017) 
 
 

1 of 283



9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Accept and refer to Plan Commission the rezoning petition from S. Duane 

Strobel, Jr. to rezone the 18.70 acre parcel located on the east side of 
Sheboygan Road approximately 506’ south of Highway 60 from Rs-1 Temporary 
Single Family District to Rm-2 (PUD) Residential Multiple Family and Planned 
Unit Development Overlay District; and action thereon 

 
* B. Consider closing Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert Avenue from 

5:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on July 29, 2017 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride and 
demonstrations; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider closing portions of Portland Road, Mill Street, Washington Avenue and 

Columbia Road for a Foot Cycling Event from noon to 2:00 p.m. on July 29, 2017 
in celebration of the 200th Anniversary of the invention of the bicycle; and action 
thereon 

 
* D. Consider closing Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert Avenue from 

5:00 a.m. – 7:30 a.m. on July 30, 2017 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride; and 
action thereon 

 
* E. Consider request of The Shinery LLC, Elizabeth Reissman, Agent, to amend the 

premises description of the “Class A” liquor license of The Shinery at W63 N706 
Washington Avenue to sell alcohol and provide limited wine sampling on the 
patio connected to the building they are located in during Strawberry Fest and 
Wine and Harvest Fest; and action thereon 

 
* F. Consider award of engineering services contract for the 2017 NR 216 storm 

water compliance reporting; and action thereon 
 
* G. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-14 repealing Sec. 10-1-13(a)(1) of the Code of 

Ordinances dealing with one-way traffic operations on Hamilton Road from ½ 
hour before to ½ hour after church services at St. Francis Borgia Church; and 
action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 05/11/17) 

 
* H. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-15 repealing Sec. 10-1-57(a) of the Code of 

Ordinances which allows the closure of Hamilton Road between Washington 
Avenue and Hilgen Avenue for play activities; and action thereon (Public Works 
& Sewerage Comm., 05/11/17) 

 
* I. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-16 repealing Sec. 10-1-29(n) of the Code of 

Ordinances which established a no parking zone during school hours to allow for 
safe and efficient loading and unloading of school buses in front of St. Francis 
School on Hamilton Road; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage 
Comm., 05/11/17) 

 
* J. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-17 repealing Sec. 10-1-34(a)(4) which established 

a loading zone in front of the former library entrance on the west side of Hanover 
Avenue and repealing Sec. 10-1-34(a)(5) which established a loading zone on 

2 of 283



the south side of Zeunert Street; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage 
Comm., 05/11/17) 

 
* K. Consider revised Policy FC-10 – Fund Balance Policy; and action thereon 
 
* L. Consider Policy CC-31 – Contacting the City Attorney; and action thereon 
 
* M. Consider claim received from Anita R. Clark for an incident on February 17, 

2017; and action thereon 
 
 N. Consider Mayor Kinzel’s reappointment of James Schara to the Parks, 

Recreation and Forestry Board (04/30/2019) and appointment of Charles 
Whitehouse to the Public Art Commission (04/30/18); and action thereon 

 
* O. Annual Review and Certification of Code of Ethics 
 
* P. Consider payment of bills for the period 05/04/17 through 06/06/17, transfers for 

the period 05/03/17 through 06/09/17, and payroll for the period 04/23/17 through 
06/03/17; and action thereon 

 
*** Q. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    
   1. Consider approval of new Operators License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2017 for James P. Dennis, Marilyn S. Fisher, Chad L. 
Heidewaid, Madissen M. Homayouni, Christian M. Hurt, Blake D. Klug, 
Daniel S. Kneiss, Jeffrey O. Peterson, Rebecca R. Schroeder, James W. 
Zipter; and action thereon 

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operators License applications for the 

period ending June 30, 2017 for Candace A. Burger, Sarah J. Niewinski, 
Kenneth W. Reid II; and action thereon 

 
          3. Authorize issuance of 2017-2018 alcohol, operator, and cigarette licenses 

(see attached list) 
    
10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
  1. First Quarter Financial Report 
 
* B. Building Inspector’s Report – May 2017 
 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
12.    ADJOURNMENT 

3 of 283



 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 

 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
06/08/17 ckm    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 of 283

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


Authorize issuance of alcohol licenses for the period ending June 30, 2018: 
 
 
Class “A” fermented malt beverage and “Class A” cider only (off-premise consumption 
only): 
 
Speedway LLC, PO Box 1580, Springfield, OH  45501, Michael R. Weber, Agent, premises to 
be licensed:  W63 N121 Washington Avenue, known as Speedway 4203. 
 
 
“Class A” intoxicating liquor (off-premise consumption only): 
 
The Shinery LLC, W63 N706 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Elizabeth 
Reissmann, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N706 Washington Avenue, known as The 
Shinery. 
 
 
Class “A” fermented malt beverage and “Class A” intoxicating liquor (off-premise 
consumption only): 
 
Bonus Inc., dba Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly, W61 N286 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Ryan L. Olson, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N286 Washington Avenue, 
known as Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly. 
 
Toto’s Inc., 4600 W. Brown Deer Road, Brown Deer, WI  53223, John M. Striepling, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W63 N157 Washington Avenue, known as Otto’s Wine and Spirits. 
 
Super Sales USA Inc., PO Box 493, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Douglas Gall, Agent, premises to 
be licensed:  W62 N174 Washington Avenue, known as Citgo Super Sales Cedarburg. 
 
Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy, LLC, One CVS Drive, M/C 1160, Woonsocket, RI  02895, Dione 
Jeffery, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N152 Washington Avenue, known as CVS 
Pharmacy #8775. 
 
Walgreen Co., P.O. Box 901, Deerfield, IL  60015, Brett D. Zingsheim, Agent, premises to be 
licensed:  W62 N190 Washington Avenue, known as Walgreens #13620. 
 
 
Class “B” fermented malt beverage and “Class B” intoxicating liquor (on or off-premise 
consumption): 
 
Ernie’s Wine Bar LLC, N49 W5471 Portland Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Benjamin M. Grade, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N49 W5471 Portland Road, known as Ernie’s Wine Bar. 
 
Stagecoach 520 LLC, W61 N520 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Anne M. 
Conley, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N520 Washington Avenue, known as 
Stagecoach Inn/The Five 20. 
 

5 of 283



RCB Group Inc., W63 N699 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Richard C. Buser, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N699 Washington Avenue, known as Maxwell’s. 
 
C. Wieslers Inc., W61 N493 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Mike G. Jackson, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N493 Washington Avenue, known as C. Wieslers. 
 
Kowloon Chinese Restaurant Inc., W63 N145 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Henry A. Liang, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N145 Washington Avenue, known as 
Kowloon Chinese Restaurant. 
 
Fineco LLC, W63 N140 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Daniel S. Pals, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W63 N140 Washington Avenue, known as Grapes and Tastes. 
 
Steven Walter Banas, W58 N438 Hilbert Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, premises to be 
licensed:  W63 N678 Washington Avenue, known as August Weber Haus. 
 
North 48 Inc., W62 N599 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Peter A. Olds, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W62 N599 Washington Avenue, known as North 48. 
 
Morton’s Wisconsinn LLC, N56 W6339 Center Street, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Chris Morton, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N56 W6339 Center Street, known as Mortons Wiscons Inn. 
 
Thomas Restaurant, LLC, W63 N688 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Nicole 
Thomas, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N688 Washington Avenue, known as 
Tomaso’s. 
 
Dreblow Jr. and Weidmann, N50 W5586 Portland Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, premises to 
be licensed:  N50 W5586 Portland Road, known as L&G Express. 
 
Peter Wollner Post No. 288 of the American Legion, W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, James A. Lee, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, known as 
Peter Wollner Post No. 288 of the American Legion. 
 
Cedarburg Cultural Center Inc., W62 N546 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Stephanie Hayes, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N546 Washington Avenue, known as 
Cedarburg Cultural Center. 
 
RCB Group Inc., W62 N550 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Richard C. Buser, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N550 Washington Avenue, known as The Stonewall 
Pub. 
 
Cedars III LLC, W53 N404 Park Lane, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Michael F. Kowalkowski, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W53 N404 Park Lane, known as Cedars III. 
 
MacBeebs LLC, Owned by Catherine Heebner, 3041 N. 75th Street, Milwaukee, WI  53210, 
Catherine Heebner, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N238 Washington Avenue, known 
as Farmstead. 
 

6 of 283



Anvil Pub & Grille LLC, N70 W6340 Bridge Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Donna M. Taylor, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 Bridge Road, known as Anvil Pub & Grille. 
 
Settlers Inn LLC, W63 N657 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Joan D. Dorsey, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N657 Washington Avenue, known as Settlers Inn. 
 
Silver Creek Brewpub LLC, N57 W6172 Portland Road, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Todd 
Schneeberger, Agent, premises to be licensed:  N57 W6172 Portland Road, known as Silver 
Creek Brewpub. 
 
Easy Street Pub & Grill LLC, W62 N559 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Daniel 
W. Brush, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N559 Washington Avenue, known as Easy 
Street Pub & Grill. 
 
Cedarburg Art Museum & Society, Inc., W63 N675 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Jill Hepburn, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N675 Washington Avenue, known 
as Cedarburg Art Museum. 
 
Phoa Brothers, Inc., W62 N547 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Jimmy Phoa, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N547 Washington Avenue, known as New Fortune. 
 
 
Class “B” fermented malt beverage (on or off-premise consumption) and “Class C” 
wine (on-premise consumption): 
 
Morales Restaurants LLC, 2550 Country Aire Drive, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Debra A. 
McQuaid, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N674 Washington Avenue, known as Vintage 
Café & City Deli. 
 
Donna M. Taylor, 1441 Keup Road, Grafton, WI  53024, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 
Bridge Road, known as Cream & Crepe Café. 
 
P.J. Piper LLC, W61 N514 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53024, Judith Fergadakis, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N514 Washington Avenue, known as P.J. Piper 
Pancake House. 
 
J.L. Joyce Enterprises Inc., W63 N144 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53024, James P. 
Joyce, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N144 Washington Avenue, known as Jim’s 
Grille. 
 
Otte Restaurants LLC, W63 N540 Hanover Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, John M. Otte, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N540 Hanover Avenue, known as Romano’s Pizzeria. 
 
GG & KR LLC, W62 N630 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Gordon M. Goggin, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W62 N630 Washington Avenue, known as Stilt House. 
 
Two Crafty Chicks LLC, W61 N506 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Kathleen 
Hartzheim, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W61 N506 Washington Avenue, known as Board 
& Brush Cedarburg. 

7 of 283



Java House Café & Micro Roaster LLC, W63 N653 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, Scott A. Sidney, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N653 Washington Avenue, 
known as Java House Café & Micro Roaster. 
 
Deelish LLC, W61 N635 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Christian T. Leonard, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  W63 N635 Washington Avenue, known as Sal’s Pizza. 
 
 
Class “B” fermented malt beverage (on or off-premise consumption): 
 
Messina II Inc., 1759 Hillside Court, Grafton, WI  53024, Dominic J. Raffaele, Agent, premises 
to be licensed:  W67 N866/890 Washington Avenue (Pavilion/Columbia St. Mary’s Center), 
known as Messina II. 
 
Baehmann’s Golf Center Inc., W73 N1122 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Kurt 
Baehmann, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W73 N1122 Washington Avenue, known as 
Baehmann’s Golf Center. 
 
JW’s 19th Tee LLC, 4720 Hwy I, Saukville, WI  53080, Jodi L. Wisnefske, Agent, premises to 
be licensed:  W67 N866/890 Washington Avenue (Pavilion/Columbia St. Mary’s Center), 
known as Crave Catering. 
 
 
“Class B” winery license (on or off-premise consumption): 
 
Wollersheim Winery Inc., 7876 Hwy 188, PO Box 87, Prairie Du Sac, WI  53578, Constance J. 
Niebauer, Agent, premises to be licensed:  N70 W6340 Bridge Road, known as Cedar Creek 
Winery. 
 
The Chiselled Grape Winery LLC, W64 N713 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  53012, 
Harald Tomesch, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W64 N713 Washington Avenue, known as 
The Chiselled Grape Winery. 
 
 

Authorize issuance of Cigarette Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018: 
 
Bonus Inc. (Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly) 
W61 N286 Washington Avenue 
 

Super Sales USA, Inc. (Citgo) 
W62 N174 Washington Avenue 

Fineco, LLC (Grapes & Tastes) 
W63 N140 Washington Avenue 
 

Toto’s Inc. (Otto’s Wine & Spirits) 
W63 N157 Washington Avenue 

Speedway, LLC (#4203) 
W63 N121 Washington Avenue 
 

Walgreen Co. (#13620) 
W62 N190 Washington Avenue 

 
 
 
 

8 of 283



Authorize issuance of new Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018 
 
Tara L. Beyer 
Naina R. Dallas 
Scott R. Galaszewski 
Paul G. Goetz 
Elizabeth C. Jaffke 
Shaya L. Leamon 
Cassandra M. Lee 
 

James J. Levine 
Scott R. May 
Joseph K. Meador 
Patrice J. Renfrow 
Tori L. Schone 
Robin L. Seidel 

Authorize issuance of renewal Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018 
 

Walter H. Alverson 
Eric J. Amenda 
Stephanie J. Baldwin 
Diane M. Banas 
Patricia M. Bartlein 
Dena C. Baule 
Nicholas L. Behling 
Roger E. Behling 
Karla M. Biermann 
Martha K. Boehlke 
Michael A. Bourbonais 
Daniel A. Brisley 
Jody L. Brzezinski 
Daniel M. Burback 
Candace A. Burger 
Christine A. Capelle 
Jordan Z. Cole 
Callen L. Cummings 
Ashley J. Daley 
Eva M. Danner 
Steven F. Danner 
James P. Dennis 
Shirley A. DeVona 
Thomas M. Dorsey 
Jacqueline J. Ertl 
Arthur E. Filter 
Jeanette L. Gabrys 
Steven R. Gratz 
Carren L. Gratz 
David B. Haberman 
Angela L. Habermann 
Christine M. Habich 
H. Michael Hagerman 
Dustin J. Halyburton 
Chad E. Hamblin 
Joseph B. Hebda 

Gina A. Heidemann 
Catherine A. Hilgart 
Sam D. Hoffmann 
BJ Homayouni 
Christopher M. Homayouni 
Katherine A. Jackson 
Brian M. Jackson 
Christine M. Jackson 
Dennis F. Jaeger 
Lori E. Josephson 
MaryLee Katzka 
Mark A. Kennedy 
Randall H. Kison 
Keri L. Klemann 
Kristen M. Klug 
Daniel S. Kniess 
Stacy J. Kowalkowski 
Mark L. Kowalkowski 
Banjamin A. Kraft 
Angela M. Kroner 
Meredith E. Kuhn 
Edmund A. Kwaterski Jr. 
James D. Lake 
Kathy A. Lanser 
Mary C. Lever 
David L. Magnusson Jr. 
Bradley J. Mayer 
Jeff D. Mayer 
Nathan Micha 
Paul V. Micha 
David B. Myers 
Sarah J. Niewinski 
Courtney C. Owrey 
Allen W. Parnell 
Cynthia M. Petted 
Sharleen M. Pokora 

Christine L. Pope 
John W. Riege 
Elizabeth F. Riley 
Zachary R. Ringel 
John Robertson 
Deborah A. Sajdak 
James M. Salp 
Erin E. Scammell 
Eric L. Siudak 
Kyle J. Smith 
Neil P. Soukup 
Ann M. Speirs 
Kim K. Stroessner 
Suzanne L. Stubblefield 
Michelle L. Taraboi 
Spencer D. Thomas 
David L. Vahsholtz 
Chris R. Velnetske 
Stephan L. Venturini 
Jeanne M. Venturini 
Jessica M. Wallace 
Kenneth L. Weintraub 
Michelle L. Welch 
Lauren A. Welch 
John A. Welk 
Kendall R. White 
Troy A. White 
Jennifer E. Wilcox 
Joseph P. Willbrandt 
Captola R. Wolfe-Bacher 
Kristine R. Wuenne 
Douglas E. Yip 
James W. Zipter 
 

 

 

9 of 283



 

  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170508-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 

PLAN COMMISSION 
                                                                      May 8, 2017 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, May 8, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 
Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe 

 
  Plan Commission – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Member John 

Czarnecki, Heather Cain, Mark Burgoyne, Greg Zimmerschied 
 
  Excused - Dan von Bargen, Mark Poellot 
                          
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, Director of Engineering 
and Public Works Tom Wiza, Planner Jon Censky, Police Chief 
Thomas Frank, Public Works Superintendent Joel Bublitz, 
Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert, General Manager Dale 
Lythjohan, Library Director Linda Pierschalla, Mechanic Bill Hintz, 
Patrol Officers Brian Emmrich and Ryan Fitting, Police Commission 
Member Linda Krieg, Library Board President Sue Karlman, Library 
Board Member Sherry Bublitz, interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor Kinzel’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome , seconded by Council Member Dieffenbach, to approve 
the minutes from the April 18, April 24, and April 25, 2017 meetings.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.   
 
COMMENTS & SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
Bill Hobbs, N47 W7034 Windwood Drive, stated that he is working with Dan Panetti to make 
Cedarburg a Bird City.  The benefits of becoming a Bird City include communicating the City’s 
current conservation successes, enabling outdoor educational and recreational opportunities for 
people of all ages, improving community pride, and improving the City’s economy through eco-
tourism. 

10 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-2 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
To achieve the Bird City certification the City needs to do the following: 

• Create an education-based newsletter, published bi-monthly. 
• Provide these educational links to the City website: 

o Audubon at Home 
o Cornell Lab or Ornithology 
o University of Wisconsin Extension 
o The Wisconsin Society of Ornithology 
o The Natural Resource Conservation Service 
o The Humane Society of the U.S. 
o And Beyond the Birdfeeder:  Creating a Bird-Friendly yard with Native Wisconsin 

Plants,” an article by Mariette Nowak 
• Be represented in one of the following events:  Swift Night Out, Christmas Bird count (held 

in December); or Great Backyard Bird Count (held in February).  Bill Hobbs would help 
organize a Swift Night Out to view birds roosting in a local smoke stack 

• Put an educational program in place to control free-roaming cats  
 
Director Hilvo is working with them to establish birding and nature paths in the parks.  The Cedar 
Pointe Conservancy is a 13-acre park located on the south side of Lincoln Blvd. and the west side of 
Evergreen Blvd. where a new trail system will open scenic wetlands and woodlands to the public 
year-round and enable Cedarburg to qualify as a Bird City.  Founders Park will also have designated 
bird trails.  
 
Mr. Hobbs expressed appreciation for considering Resolution No.  2017-11 declaring May 13, 2017 
as International Migratory Bird Day.   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 COMMENDING RETIRING 
DETECTIVE/SERGEANT JEFFREY VAHSHOLTZ FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2017-10 commending retiring Detective/Sergeant Jeffrey Vahsholtz for his years of 
service.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
Jeff Vahsholtz thanked all those who helped him succeed, adding that it has been a fantastic 35 year 
career and he enjoyed his work immensely.  He will continue as Fire Chief for the Cedarburg Fire 
Department.   
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 2016 AUDIT REPORT; AND DIRECTION THEREON 
 
Paul Frantz of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP presented the results of the 2016 City audit.   
 
Audit Objective 
The objective is to express an opinion on the financial statements of the City of Cedarburg as of 
December 31, 2016.   
 

11 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-3 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Financial Statements 

o Audit Opinion 
After tonight’s review they will issue an opinion based on the Council’s recommendation 
and approval.  An unmodified opinion is the highest level of assurance that the City can 
receive from the external auditors.  It means that the financial statement document has all 
accounting principles applied consistently between years, in allowance of generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Also, the disclosures within the footnotes are consistent within the 
generally accepted accounting principles.  They identified a number of restatements that 
were required under generally accepted accounting principles to bring the financial records 
into the appropriate shape.  They also identified an investment vehicle that is not in 
compliance with Wisconsin State Statute.  This does not affect the opinion of the audit other 
than bringing it to the Council’s attention. 
 

o Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
This is a high level summary of the financial information.  This explains the document and 
gives a comparison between 2015 and 2016.   
 

o Financial Highlights – Governmental Funds 
 General Fund – Revenues were $7,874,191 compared to expenditures of $8,457,378 
 Other Sources – Transfer of $780,592  
 Change in Fund Balance - $197,405 
 End of Year Fund Balance - $2,445,980 

o Fund Balance consists of Non-spendable (prepaid item) $82,041, Assigned 
(for future years use) $298,371, and Unassigned $2,065,568   

 Health of General Fund Reserves – They recommend a range of unassigned fund 
balance of 10 – 25% of the budgeted expenditures of the subsequent year.  The City 
has a healthy 23% 

 Budgetary Compliance – The City budgeted to use $80,304 of fund balance.  The 
City added $197,405 for a positive difference of $277,709. 

 Capital Improvement Fund Balance - $1,884,513. 
 Debt Service Fund Balance - $205,042. 
 Non-major Government Funds (Consist of cemetery, room tax, recreation programs, 

CDBG, swimming pool, park impact fees, library, rescue and EMS, length of service 
award program, and TID #3) - $2,618,769. 

 Proprietary Funds – Unrestricted and Restricted Cash Balance - (Light & Water 
Utility - $8,120,087, Sewer Utility - $5,741,265, and Internal Service Fund – Risk - 
$898,307.  These funds operate under a different method of accounting; therefore, 
the net position number is misleading.  The City wants to look at what is available 
for use in these funds to determine if rates are appropriate). 

 Long-Term Debt – Between the City and the Utilities there is $18,721,704 of 
outstanding general obligation debt.  Statutory debt limits allow 5% of the equalized 
value.  The City has the ability to borrow $62,723,900 and the capacity to borrow an 
additional $44,767,789.  
  

Communication Letter 
o Material weaknesses were identified:  Internal controls over financial reporting (journal 

entries to bring financial statements into compliance with the required standards).  This is 

12 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-4 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

a very common material weakness that they give to their clients as 90-95% of 
Governments rely on their external auditors to prepare this document and the firm’s 
standards require that they make you aware of this. (NOTE:  working with City 
Administrator/Treasurer Mertes during the year has given them significant comfort in her 
level of expertise in the industry.  Moving forward he suspects they will adjust the 
language of this material weakness to be more focused at the material adjusting journal 
entry level rather than not having someone on staff to prepare that financial statement 
document.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes has the ability to read that document, 
understand what is required, and the City has made a decision that there is cost benefit to 
outsource this.  If things continue, he suspects that is the direction they will move.  It is 
not a reflection of Management’s knowledge or skills; it is a learning curve between the 
two parties.)  The other material weakness (will not continue in year two) – there were 
restatements necessary. 

o Two way communication regarding the audit – looking for feedback from the Common 
Council. 

o Other comments and recommendations – discusses departmental controls and states that 
they do not review the individual controls of each of department and ultimately there 
could be a gap in the evaluation.  They noted that there is an advance between the 
General Fund and the TIF and that there is no resolution in place to allow the General 
Fund to charge interest on that advance.  Interest is an allowable cost in the TIF when 
there is a borrowing between two funds that the City should be aware of and a resolution 
could be adopted. 

o Required communication to those charged with governance – lists any new accounting 
policies that were adopted during the course of the year along with accounting estimates 
that were evaluated and used by management.  This communication also indicates that 
they did not have any disagreements with Management during the audit.  Lastly, they list 
the non- services that they provided for the City and declare their independence.   

 
Mr. Frantz stated that it has been a pleasure to work with the City and he appreciated all of the time 
and effort that City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes and staff put into the process.   
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Mr. Frantz stated that the non-compliance 
investment involves the length of service agreement program for the Fire Department.  UBS did not 
qualify under State Statute 66.0603(1) relating to the equity securities.  City 
Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said they are investigating if they can prove that the Statute they 
operate under is okay or they will need to change the type of investments the funds are in.  
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated 
that the City was unable to meet the expenditure restraint program for 2017 because as part of the 
budget process the City had to keep the expenditure increase at 2.7%.  There was a change in the 
calculation that was done by the State; therefore, the City had to include all funds that were levied 
for, and as a result the City was not able to meet the parameters and lost $160,000 in revenue for 
2018.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes confirmed that she told the Common Council numerous 
times during the budget process. 
   
Mayor Kinzel stated that the City will be back on track to meet the expenditure restraint program in 
2018 for 2019. 

13 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-5 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, Mr. Frantz stated that he spoke with the 
former auditing firm during the process to understand how an accounting standard was put into 
place.  He said that they concurred with the $700,000 reduction in the Fund Balance. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that there were no uncorrected misstatements under the 
heading of Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements on Page 13 and he asked Mr. Frantz to take 
the words “uncorrected misstatements” out.  Mr. Frantz agreed to the change.  
 
Council Member Dieffenbach confirmed with Mr. Frantz that their fees were in accordance with the 
agreement. 
 
It was the consensus of the Common Council that there we no areas of concern.    
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 2016 LIBRARY REPORT 
 
Library Director Pierschalla presented the highlights of the 2016 Annual Library Report that is 
submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction and the Cedarburg Library Board.   
 
The Mission Statement that was developed by the Library Board of Trustees is:  The Cedarburg 
Public Library provides information and resources to all citizens of the community for their 
continuing recreational, educational, and cultural needs. 
 
2016 was the Library’s second full year in the new facility.  They noted from the previous year, the 
demand for technology from the Library users.  This prompted the Library to conduct a technology 
survey to best address patrons needs, as well as wants.  They listened to the results and obtained 
funding (grants) from the Greater Cedarburg Foundation and the Cedarburg Friends of the Library 
totaling $13,000 to purchase items that ranked high on the survey. 
 
2016 Service Benchmarks 

• 196,411 items were checked out in 2016, compared to 208,020 in 2015. 
• 8,787 residents registered for Library cards, compared to 9,357 in 2015. 
• 3,731 non-residents registered for a card, compared to 4,899 in 2015. 
• Total Library card holders of 12,518 compared to 14,407 in 2015. 
• 14,404 research questions were answered. 
• 124,354 people entered the Library (actual gate count). 
• 47,822 Wi-Fi logins, compared to 21,018 in 2015.   
• The number of physical materials checked out decreased by 2% (less people are checking 

out DVDs), the number of digital materials checked out increased by 41%. 
• Program attendance increased (Youth – 49%, Adult – 27%). 

 
Director Pierschalla stated that the Library brings people to downtown Cedarburg and they consider 
the Library to be an economic anchor for the downtown. 
 
Return on Investment 

• The per capita expenditure for library service from the City budget is $61.60. 
• Average Cedarburg family of four pays $246/year for library service. 

14 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-6 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• Average use by a family in one month of usage provided a savings of $415. 
 
Looking Forward 

• The Library Board developed the following Technology Vision Statement: 
o The CPL Board of Trustees is committed to supporting, updating, and funding 

technology in three broad areas: 
 Leading edge “innovative” technology that attracts current and new users and 

makes CPL an important part of the regional technology hub. 
 The behind-the-scenes “infrastructure” that staff rely on for library 

operations. 
 The practical “daily use” technology that enjoys frequent use and high levels 

of public engagement. 
 
Implementation Plan for 2017- 2018 

• Microsoft Software classes are now being offered. 
• Adobe Creative Cloud software will be installed and ready for use with additional 

programming with the first Expert in Residence by the summer of 2017. 
• A Digital Conversion Lab will be up and running by the beginning of 2018. 
• Virtual Reality equipment and software will be offered to the public during the fall of 2017. 
• Coding and Design Classes will be revitalized and up and running with programs for all age 

groups and cover a variety of skills in calendar year 2018. 
• Drone equipment, programs and classes will be available in 2018. 
• The 3D Laser Cutter/Engraver initiative will be delayed until it can be proven to run 

effectively in a library setting. 
 

Wisconsin’s Digital Library 
• Established in 2001 and is a shared, statewide collection of eBooks, audiobooks, magazines, 

and streaming video available for free to all Wisconsin public library card holders. 
 
Monarch Library System 

• 2017 brought the change from the two county Eastern Shores Library System to the current 
four county Monarch Library System that includes the 31 public libraries in Dodge, 
Ozaukee, Sheboygan and Washington counties and Lakeland College. 

• Cedarburg residents have access via the Monarch Catalog to over one million items that are 
delivered five days a week.  The Library System is an excellent example of resource sharing 
among four counties to reduce costs and increase services. 

 
Thank you Cedarburg Friends of the Library for the Following Contributions: 

• Summer Reading Program - $3,750 
• Year Round Programs - $2,250 
• Extra copies of bestsellers - $2,000 
• Staff Support - $1,000 
• Various other projects - $2,000 

 
\ 
 

15 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-7 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Thank you 2016 Library Board of Trustees 

• Sue Karlman, Steve Ruggieri, Debra Goeks, Vonna Pitel, Council Member Dick 
Dieffenbach, Sherry Bublitz, and David Moburg. 

 
Budget 

• The revenues and expenditures were $18,000 over budget in 2016.  The Library is working 
to cut costs in order to balance the revenues and expenditures for 2017. 

 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Director Pierschalla stated that she has applied for 
all of the available grants to-date. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that he is the Council representative on the Library Board.  He 
congratulated the Board on running the Library like a business and making sure that the budget 
balances.  He stated that the Library is a vibrant business and they probably have the second most 
visitors in a day, next to Olsen’s Piggly Wiggly, at 372 visitors per day. 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE ARRABELLE TRAFFIC STUDY; AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
THEREON 
 
Tony DeRosa of HSI explained that one of the conditions for the approval of the Arabelle 
development was that a traffic study be conducted to determine the impact of traffic with the 
project.  Along with Tony DeRosa was John Bieberitz of Traffic Analysis & Design to deliver the 
report. 
 
John Bieberitz explained that a traffic study is not an approval of the development; it is a study of 
traffic and how the development impacts the street system and if any improvements are needed as a 
result of that increased traffic on the streets.   
 
The analysis includes three scenarios: 

• How does traffic operate on these streets today; 
• How did traffic operate a few years ago with the school in operation; 
• How would traffic be expected to operate in the future with Arabelle development. 

 
The study area for the potential development included the following intersections: 

• Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road (one-way stop control); 
• Washington Avenue and Spring Street (one-way stop control); and 
• Hamilton Road and Hilgen Avenue (two-way stop control). 

 
When looking at these intersections they reviewed the 24 hour traffic volumes that are recorded by 
the Wisconsin Department of Transportation every three years.  From a historical perspective, 
traffic volumes are stable with maybe a downward trend.  For example, Hamilton Road in 2013 had 
1,800 vehicles per day and a road this size has a capacity of 12,000 cars per day.  This shows that a 
lot of growth can occur on this street.  Likewise, Spring Street had approximately 1,100 vehicles per 
day in 2010 when school was in session.  
 
At the intersections, they had staff in the field counting the vehicles and analyzing the data every 15 
minutes on a weekday from 6:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. and then 2:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. to capture school 

16 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-8 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
traffic and evening rush hour.  This was done the week prior to spring break.  A traffic gap study 
was also done to determine how easy it is turn right or left onto Washington Avenue from Hamilton 
Road.  The gap study was done on a Friday and the Monday of spring break from 4:30 p.m. – 5:30 
p.m.  The results indicated that the typical rush hour is from 7:00 a.m. – 8:00 a.m. and from 4:30 
p.m. – 5:30 p.m.  The peak school traffic was from 3:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
The existing conditions indicate that traffic operates at acceptable levels during the peak hours.  The 
standards for waiting at a stop are graded from A-F.  During the existing conditions the grade was C 
or better, which indicates that there is no need for any intersection improvements or safety concerns 
based on today’s conditions. 
 
Next they looked at the traffic generation for the proposed development compared to the traffic 
generation for the school.  During the morning peak hour the school would generate about four 
times more traffic than the apartments would.  Likewise, in the evening the school would generate 
over three times more traffic than the apartments would.  In a total 24 hour period on a typical 
weekday with school in session, the school would generate 22% more traffic than the apartments 
would.  Based on this comparison of numbers, the school had a greater impact on traffic than the 
proposed apartments. 
 
The study showed that with the apartments in place, everything operates at the C grade, which may 
include some delays.  This indicates that no improvements or traffic modifications are needed.  
When the school was in session the grade was also at C. 
 
In summary, operationally based on standards set forth by the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation everything operates at an acceptable level during the peak hours.  Comparing this 
area to what it was five or ten years ago, the traffic impacts of the apartments vs. school, the 
apartments have less of a traffic impact than the school did at the time. 
 
In answer to Mayor Kinzel’s question, Mr. Bieberitz stated that the actual analysis was done the 
week prior to spring break on April 3, 5-7, and April 10.   
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s question, Mr. Bieberitz stated the industry standards are 
set forth by the Federal Highway Administration, which has been adopted by WisDOT, Ozaukee 
County, and the City. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Mr. Bieberitz stated that Hamilton Road could 
handle as many as 12,000 vehicles based on planning guidelines from WisDOT and SEWRPC 
based on the 24 hour volume on a typical street with parking, sidewalks and curb and gutter of the 
same width.  With these same guidelines applied to Washington Avenue, the vehicle traffic 
increases to 18,000- 20,000 a day. 
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, Mr. Bieberitz stated that the sequence of the 
traffic control signals will not be changed in this case, primarily because from the apartment’s 
perspective the traffic pattern will be steady. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen stated that the analysis that was done on April 10 was during spring 
break. 

17 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-9 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Mr. Bieberitz stated this was done between 4:30 p.m. – 5:30 p.m. after school would have been in 
session. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, Mr. Bieberitz stated that they only 
addressed traffic flow and not parking.  He stated that the streets surrounding the proposed 
development are adequate based on the amount of traffic expected to be generated and they do not 
recommend any changes to the area.   
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Mr. DeRosa stated that they have not 
contemplated redirecting the Building C exit to Spring Street vs. Hamilton Road.  That part of the 
site is planned for a single family home. 
 
Plan Commissioner Zimmerschied asked what tools would be available if all of the smart growth 
areas were developed and there was increased traffic.  Would one row of parking be able to be 
eliminated on Hamilton Road? 
 
Director Wiza stated that the parking issues on Hamilton Road could be looked at as traffic 
develops.  Occasionally the City runs into problems in the winter when there is a lot of snow, they 
have put up temporary no parking signs due to the encroachment of the snow banks.  Over time 
parking restrictions can be reviewed.  The addition of a traffic signal is very unlikely to be 
warranted at Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road.  This may cause more problems than would 
be solved by adding more traffic signals.  At 1,800 vehicles a day, you could incrementally double 
that amount and still not justify signals. 
 
Planner Censky added that when the Weil pump site is reviewed, the intent is to extend a roadway 
system through from Jackson Street to Western Avenue.   
 
Plan Commissioner Burgoyne asked if a no left turn option had been considered from Hamilton 
Road onto Washington Avenue. 
 
Director Wiza stated that it could be prohibited; however, it would be better to monitor the area and 
possibly talk to the church to make some modifications to their vegetation or monument because it 
is a difficult corner to see around. 
 
Planner Censky stated that there has been some discussion with the church regarding relocation of 
their sign. 
 
In answer to Council Member Regenfuss’ question, Director Wiza stated that traffic control is 
already established on Hanover with a two-way stop on Hilbert Avenue.  Typically a very high 
threshold needs to be met for a four-way stop. 
 
Mr. Bieberitz stated that you typically want an even traffic flow in both directions for a four-way 
stop. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that it appears that the traffic on Washington Avenue is declining 
over time.  Mr. Bieberitz stated that from 1995 to 2000 the counts that he is looking at were not 
seasonally adjusted.  Since 2000 they have been seasonally adjusted to account for various months 

18 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-10 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
of the year.  April and May would be perfect traffic months because school is in session and people 
are out biking and walking.  Traffic Analysis & Design Inc. looked at the numbers statically and 
they actually increase the traffic rate by .5% to make it a more robust analysis. 
 
In answer to a citizen’s concern about the difficulty in turning left onto Washington Avenue from 
Jackson Street, Mr. Bieberitz stated that Jackson Street is equally spaced between two stop lights 
that create gaps.  She stated that sometimes she needs to turn south to go north.  
 
Aaron Schultz, W59 N370 Hilbert Avenue, heard that they did not consider any projections for 
parking needs or demands on Hamilton Road.  He submitted a number of notes to the Common 
Council and Plan Commission regarding his observation of the corridor.  It gets cramped when 
people are using both sides of the street.  Any given morning when the church is in use, there are 
8-10 parked cars on each side of the road and people commuting through the area need to take turns 
getting through.  At a time when there was a dump truck on one side and a car on the other, a semi-
truck came through and there was only room for one-way traffic.  He asked what kind of street 
parking will be generated by the Townhouses and the reduction of parking from the Saint Francis 
Borgia parking lot (83 spots turned into 40 spots) and the apartments.  This combination is going to 
create a number of pinch points.  Has this been discussed? 
 
Mr. DeRosa stated that they designed the plan to exceed what the City required from a parking 
standpoint.  They have allowed for church parking to eliminate the need for street parking for the 
entire development. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Director Wiza stated that there were some 
restrictions in place during school for the bus movement.  There are some leftover parking and 
traffic regulations on Hamilton Road that will be addressed by the Public Works and Sewerage 
Commission.  Director Wiza stated that there are issues with two-way traffic and parking on both 
sides of the street on 98% of the City streets.  At 1,800 cars a day, this is manageable and is even 
seen on the new subdivision streets.  The new streets are built 32 feet wide and Hamilton Road is 31 
feet wide.  They rely on the fact that there is not a steady stream of traffic, as on Washington 
Avenue.   
 
Council Member Arnett asked if truck traffic could be eliminated on Hamilton Road.  Director 
Wiza stated that there is a prohibition on through trucking; however, they are allowed on the road 
for deliveries.  There is some increase in this traffic since the Town of Cedarburg has eliminated 
Green Bay Road as a haul route to the Wastewater Plant.   
 
Planner Censky stated if the traffic study is acceptable to the Common Council then the developer 
can begin working on their architectural plans, detailed site plan, and landscaping. 
 
As there were no disagreements to the study, the plan will move forward.               
 
The Plan Commission was excused at 8:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

19 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-11 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A REVOLVING LOAN FUND LOAN FOR 
TEMPERATUREPRO; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that the ad hoc Revolving Loan Fund Committee met on 
May 2 to review the request along with collateralization and income statement projections and have 
recommended approval of the loan.   
 
Executive Director Kathleen Cady Schilling of the Ozaukee Economic Development (OED) has 
been working with TemperaturePro and provided a memorandum providing a summary and staff 
analysis of their request for a Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) loan for working capital as part of his 
start-up costs.  
 
City Attorney Herbrand asked that the conditions of approval that were presented by OED be 
included in the motion to approve the loan, if the Council decides to do so. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve a 
Revolving Loan Fund loan for TemperaturePro with the following conditions: 

• That a $70,000 RLF loan is provided to TemperaturePro.  The loan would be used for 
working capital as part of its start-up costs. 

• That an equity infusion of $70,000 is provided to the Company by the owner. 
• That the RLF loan is provided with a five-year term and amortization and an interest rate of 

2 percent. 
• That the RLF loan has a six month deferral of principal payments. 
• That the loan is secured with the collateral identified above. 
• That the Company creates two new full-time equivalent positions within 24 month of the 

closing on the RLF loan and that the new jobs are made available through the Ozaukee 
County Workforce Development Center.  Additionally, the company agrees to hire 51% of 
its employees from low to moderate income households. 

• That the Company provides to the City, or its designee, on an annual basis, semi-annual 
financial statements that are certified by the borrower, annual financial statements that are 
compiled by a certified public accountant, and signed copies of the corporate Federal 
income tax return. 

Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
Council Member Thome stated that she was excited that the funds were being used because she was 
the administrator at one time and the funds were not used very often. 
 
CONSIDER PROPOSAL FROM RUEKERT AND MIELKE FOR CEDARBURG TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE MID MORAINE WATER QUALITY COLLECTIVE; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that the new storm water regulations have been evolving and to better 
address the new Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) some communities have banded together to 
attack the problem on more of a watershed basis.   Ruekert & Mielke has teamed up with GRAEF to 
form the Mid Moraine Water Quality Collective.  The group represents communities in Ozaukee 

20 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-12 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
and Washington Counties, which presently includes Cedarburg, Mequon, West Bend, 
Campbellsport, Fredonia, Grafton, Jackson, Kewaskum, Newburg, Saukville, Thiensville, and the 
Town of Grafton.   
 
Dave Arnott of Ruekert & Mielke and Matt Bednarski of GRAEF explained that the two main 
advantages of joining the collective is to save time and money, and for greater political clout.  The 
DNR has a vision and prefers to work together on a watershed basis.  There are two other groups in 
the area (North Shore and Menomonee).  This group will work towards group compliance and 
group conditions in reporting rather than each community producing their own.  They will be able 
to negotiate permit language and the timing of permits.   
 
Mr. Arnott outlined the progress and activity for the Mid Moraine Water Quality Collective to-date 
and stated that they would like the City of Cedarburg to join them. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated 
that the $5,000 is available in the stormwater budget.  Director Wiza added that this is a worthwhile 
opportunity because stormwater regulations are evolving and the efforts have been positive from 
this group. 
 
In answer to Mayor Kinzel’s question, Mr. Bednarski stated that the City will see a return on their 
investment, as much as $60,000. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Mr. Arnott stated that 75% of the area 
communities are in the Collective. 
 
Director Wiza stated that this collective would be working on a more global path and would be in a 
better position to disseminate and educate pertinent information. 
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, Superintendent Hackert stated that being a 
member of the Collective would help Cedarburg in their current permitting path for the Wastewater 
Plant. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve the 
proposal from Ruekert and Mielke in the amount of $5,000 for Cedarburg to participate in the Mid 
Moraine Water Quality Collective.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER ENGINEERING PROPOSAL FORM GRAEF FOR ADDITIONAL TESTING 
AND ANALYSIS OF THE COLUMBIA MILLS DAM PER DNR REQUIREMENTS; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that GRAEF is currently preparing plans for various DNR mandated 
repairs to the Woolen Mills and Columbia Mills dams.  As part of their review process, the DNR is 
requiring additional testing of the bedrock, as well as a stability analysis of the existing Columbia 
Mills Dam structure.  This work is not included in the original engineering services proposal and 
GRAEF has requested a contract amendment in the amount of $5,850 to complete the additional 
work. 
 

21 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-13 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Regenfuss’ question, Director Wiza explained that if the City wants 
to argue that the Cedarburg dams should be treated differently by the DNR because they are built 
into the bedrock then the City needs to prove that the bedrock will not erode. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Director Wiza stated that this is a positive step 
forward and indicates openness on the part of the DNR.   
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated 
that the City budgets for environmental work every year for this purpose.  
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the 
engineering proposal from GRAEF for additional testing and analysis of the Columbia Mills Dam 
per DNR requirements in an amount not to exceed $5,850.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FROM WE ENERGIES TO RENT THE FORMER REMOTE 
RECEIVING STATION AT N144 W5888 PIONEER ROAD FROM JUNE 1, 2017 TO 
APRIL 20, 2018 FOR OUTDOOR STORAGE OF POWER POLES, CABLE AND 
SWITCHGEAR; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Planner Censky explained that WE Energies will be doing work in the area and in preparation 
for that work they are searching for a site to serve their temporary storage needs.  Since they have 
been unsuccessful in working with private land owners in the area, they are requesting to use the 
City’s former receiving station at N144 W5888 Pioneer Road.  The site is not currently being used 
although the Police Department does use it periodically as an impound site.  This site is 
approximately one acre in size, is secure by a six foot high chain link fence with vegetative 
screening around the periphery and is supported by a nine inch thick concrete drive.  WE Energies 
proposes to rent the space for $400 per month. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki asked if there were any improvements on the property that could be 
damaged.  Director Wiza stated that the site has heavy duty asphalt and a fence.  They would 
caution WE Energies to not damage the fence. 
 
In answer to Mayor Kinzel’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated that the City could ask for a 
month-to-month lease or a right to terminate; however, there is usually a six month lead time for 
any project to get started. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Director Wiza stated that WE Energies offered to 
pay $400 per month and the rent will go to the Sewer Utility. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki asked if there were any encumbrances on the property that would 
prohibit the City from renting the property to WE Energies.  City Attorney Herbrand stated there 
were none at this time and the only risk would be if a developer comes forward with a potential use 
for the site.  Also, WE Energies has been asked to share the site with the Police Department for 
impound purposes. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 
the request from WE Energies to rent the former remote receiving station at N144 W5888 Pioneer 

22 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-14 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Road from June 1, 2017 to April 20, 2018 for outdoor storage of power poles, cable and switchgear.  
Motion carried without a negative vote.    
 
CONSIDER APPEAL OF THE WPDES PERMIT AND REQUEST FOR CONTESTED 
CASE HEARING; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that Attorney Art Harrington of Godfrey & Kahn and Jonathon Butt of 
Symbiont have assisted staff in preparing an appeal and request for a contested case hearing for the 
re-issuance of the new DNR permit for the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The permit sets forth a 
very restrictive effluent phosphorus limit and there are a number of technical issues that the City 
believes are worth challenging.  The City was given 60 days to file an appeal or accept the permit 
as-is.  By filing for a contested case hearing it will allow talking points between the City and the 
DNR.  Any amount spent now will be well spent because the City may be looking at a $7 million 
cost to be in compliance and is hopeful for a possible lessening in the restrictions.  
 
Council Member O’Keefe stated that this is an emerging market area for consultants.  
Superintendent Hackert stated that this action should help in the interim and buy the City some 
time. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to file an appeal 
of the WPDES permit and make a request for contested case hearing.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-11 DECLARING MAY 13, 2017 AS 
INTERNATIONAL MIGRATORY BIRD DAY; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2017-11 declaring May 13, 2017 as International Migratory Bird Day.  Motion 
carried with Council Members Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome and O'Keefe 
voting in favor and Council Member Czarnecki opposed. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PURCAHSE OF A FRONT 
END LOADER; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that the City planned to purchase one front end loader this year; however, 
there has been an ongoing intermittent steering problem with an existing 2011 John Deere loader 
that is a safety hazard.  In spite of John Deere’s persistent effort’s to service it, they have not been 
able to fully fix the problem.  To resolve the issue, John Deere is offering to buy out the 2011 John 
Deere loader and replace this unit with a new one, provided the City purchase the loader we have in 
the budget from John Deere.  This loader in the budget would replace the existing 2003 Case loader 
and plow.  The offer proposed by John Deere would put the City approximately $10,000 over the 
Public Works approved $235,000 Capital budget.  With this proposal the City would be getting two 
new front end loaders, close to the price of one.  There are advantages in servicing and maintaining 
like units. 
 

23 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-15 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Superintendent Bublitz and Mechanic Hintz explained the ongoing issues and John Deere’s 
attempts at trying their best to fix the loader.  This will solve a safety issue for the Department and 
agreed that this purchase is a good value for the City.   
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s questions, Mechanic Hintz stated that John Deere’s price is 
competitive and they have not charged the City over the last six years for service on the steering 
problem.  
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes 
explained that the Capital Improvements equipment replacement fund would cover the additional 
$10,000 to replace the defective equipment. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to 
approve the request for an additional $10,000 for the purchase of a front end loader.  Motion carried 
without a negative vote.  
 
Council Member Thome commended the Public Works Department for being creative in solving an 
ongoing problem. 
 
CONSIDER MAYOR KINZEL’S APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 
COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Regenfuss, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve 
Mayor Kinzel’s appointments to various Boards, Committees and Commissions as follows: 
 
Board of Appeals- 3 year term 
 
Mayor appointment as Chair – Gerald Stutz 
 
Aaron Olejniczak   (04/30/20)   
Edward Foy (alt)   (04/30/19) (first alternate) 
Megan Torres (alt)   (04/30/20) (second alternate) 
 
Board of Review – 5 year term 
 
Doug Yip (alt)   (04/30/22) 
 
Economic Development Board – 3 year term 
 
Mayor appointment as Chair – Council Member Jack Arnett 
 
Mike Groth   (04/30/18)  
Lynn Knutson   (04/30/20) 
Michael Pahl   (04/30/20) 
 
 
 

24 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-16 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Library Board - 3 year term 
 
Todd Bugnacki, School Rep (04/30/18) 
DeWayna Cherrington (04/30/20) 
  
Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board – 2 year term 
 
Scott King         (04/30/19) 
Paul Rushing   (04/30/19) 
Dave Polacek   (04/30/19) 
 
Plan Commission – 3 year term 
 
Dan von Bargen  (04/30/20)  
 
Police & Fire Commission – 5 year term 
 
Robert Carroll   (04/30/22) 
Linda Krieg   (04/30/22) 
 
Public Art Commission – 2 year term 
 
Blaine Gibson   (04/30/19) 
David Eitel   (04/30/19) 
Melissa Wraalstad  (04/30/19) 
Jeanette Gabrys  (04/30/19) 
Deb Mortl   (04/30/19) 
Vacant    (04/30/18) 
  
Council Member Verhaalen stated that it is hard to get people to volunteer on boards, commission 
and committees.  In this case he provided several people who were willing to serve on the Parks, 
Recreation & Forestry Board and he expressed disappointment that Mayor Kinzel did not appoint 
them; however, he does respect the Mayor’s decision. 
 
Motion carried with Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, Dieffenbach, Regenfuss, Thome and 
O'Keefe voting in favor and Council Member Verhaalen opposed. 
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS DATED 04/28/17, TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 
04/20/17 THROUGH 05/02/17, AND PAYROLL FOR THE PERIOD 04/09/17 THROUGH 
04/22/17; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
payment of bills dated 04/28/17, transfers for the period 04/20/17 through 05/02/17, and payroll for 
the period 04/09/27 through 04/22/17.  Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
 
 

25 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-17 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to authorize 
the issuance of new Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018 to: 
 
Wendy S. Bolz Alex M. Hauschel Tyler T. Schemenauer 
 
and renewal Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018 to: 
 
Emma M. Allison Jill Hepburn Kenneth W. Reid II 
Hannah C. Aronson Sarah L. Hepburn Ronald H. Reimer 
Kevin J. Bachmann Leslie E. Heppe Troy D. Reissmann 
Deborah Bath Bradley J. Herian Erin A. Riley 
Lisa F. Bender James M. Hintz Mark D. Roberts 
Lindsey J. Berndt Elizabeth D. Hoffman Ann M. Ruska 
Michael C. Besaw Teri Jackson Elizabeth M. Sattler 
Nan J. Bolker Matthew C. Jackson Rhyann E. Schottler 
Caitlyn C. Burns Kristin V. Kamke Susan E. Schrader 
Abigail R. Carpenter Mikayla F. Keough Alan M. Schroeder 
Pamela M. Caserta Hugdahl Charles A. Kison Richard S. Siefert 
Annette L. Chiddister Woods Nekana L. Kitzerow Jean M. Snow-Lambo 
Christine Christon Bruce K. Knutson Steven K. Stauske 
Joel M. Christophersen Shannon M. Kolbach Julie M. Streicher 
Andrew W. Conley Bruce A. Krenzke Laura M. Struebing 
Bill W. Conley Shirley K. Krenzke Gene Szudrowitz 
Megan T. Czisny Daniel W. Kropidlowski Jeff M. Theisen 
Mary E. Dolezal Terry B. Krueger Jodie E. Thierfelder 
Tricia A. Dooley Pamela S. LaBouve Scott R. Thomas 
Monica J. Dorsey Diane M. Lane Clayton A. Tietz 
Shelley M. Doxtator James A. Lee Kelly E. Timple 
Gordon K. Dreblow Dennis H. Loberger Karie L. Todd 
Jonathan P. Dunne Karissa J. Mathias Gerald E. Truchan 
Eric W. Engstrom Brandon J. McCarthy Abby M. Tucholka 
Suzanne V. Ernst Cheyenne C. McDaniel Richard L. von Trebra 
Judi K. Even Saul Benjamin Morales McQuaid Frank N. Vroman 
Robert J. Flom Jason D. Mutza Clarey Wamhoff 
Kathlyn T. Geracie Sharon L. Nelson Larry D. Weidmann 
Blaine E. Gibson Richard H. Nielsen Patrick R. Weyer 
Daniel D. Gogin Daniel S. Pals Jeffrey A. Wrobbel 
Kim M. Gordon Sheryl L. Pals John E. Zarling 
Eric E. Grassel Maureen M. Peck  
Jeremy M. Gruenweller David J. Polacek  
Christopher S. Haywood Krystal L. Poppe  
Andrew W. Heidtke Bryan J. Price  
Gerald J. Henning Nicholas J. Rech 
 

 

Motion carried without a negative vote.  

26 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170508-18 
May 8, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve new 
Operators License applications for the period ending June 30, 2017 for Elizabeth A. Albers, 
Kimberly R. Eggleston, Diane M. Lane, and Saul Benjamin Morales McQuaid.  Motion carried 
without a negative vote.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to issue a 6-
month Class B Beer license to C. Wiesler’s Inc., Michael G. Jackson, Agent, for the Cedar Creek 
Park Concession Stand, N52 W5925 Portland Road from May 8, 2017 to November 8, 2017.  
Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that she has received her third Treasurer’s renewal 
certification (15 years).  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Verhaalen encouraged the Common Council to stop by or participate in Mel’s 
Charity bowling event at Cedar’s III on May 13, as he is sponsoring two teams.  
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Kinzel issued a Proclamation for Older Americans Month – May. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to adjourn to 
closed session at 9:37 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the 
Council who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, mores specifically, to discuss the Prochnow 
Landfill.  Approval of closed session minutes of 04/18/17 and 04/25/17.  Motion carried 
unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to reconvene 
to open session at 10:02 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adjourn the 
meeting at 10:03 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

27 of 283



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  June 12, 2017                                                                        ITEM NO:    8. A. 

 

TITLE: Public Hearing – Consider Ordinance No. 2017-13 amending Sec. 13-1-55 of the Zoning 
Code to permit the Landmarks Commission and Plan Commission to approve outdoor patios 
enclosed by a pergola or similar fence structure in the rear yard setback area for properties in the B-
3 Central Business District; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 05/01/17) 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   

The Fiddleheads Coffee Shop is proposing to install a seasonal patio enclosed by a pergola 
structure in the rear yard of their Coffee Shop at W62 N605 Washington Avenue. The intent is to 
expand their outdoor seating area from the south side of their building to the area directly west of 
their building and the adjacent building to the west that fronts Turner Street. Staff’s review of their 

site plan however revealed that there is insufficient room in their rear yard for the proposed pergola 
enclosure to meet the required 15 foot rear yard setback. Fiddlehead’s rear yard is approximately 18 

feet deep. Accordingly, the applicant is requesting a Zoning Code text amendment to allow the 
Landmarks and Plan Commissions to consider, on a case-by-case basis, outdoor patios enclosed by 
a pergola or similar fence structure in the rear yard setback area for sites in the B-3 Central Business 
District. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Approve. 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

At their April 13, 2017 meeting the Landmarks Commission recommended approval by unanimous 
vote and on May 1, 2017 the Plan Commission also recommended approval by unanimous vote. 
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: N/A 
   

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance Number 2017-13 
 Plan Commission minutes from the May 1, 2017 meeting. 
 Landmarks Commission minutes from the April 13, 2017 meeting. 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Jovana Cubric, Fiddleheads 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 

 

 

28 of 283



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-13 

 

An Ordinance Amending the B-3 Central Business District Text to 

Allow the Landmarks Commission and Plan Commission to 

Approve a Pergola or Similar Structure in the Setback Area 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 13-1-55 of the Zoning Code of the City of Cedarburg is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

TABLE 13-1-55 

 

B-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

  

DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS          (See Note
 (a)

 for HPD Buildings) 

FLOOR AREA RATIOS 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 150% 

Minimum Floor Area Per Use/Tenant/Business (sf) 300 

LOT DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Minimum Lot Area (sq. ft.) 4,800 

Minimum Lot Width at Setback Line (ft.) 40 

Minimum Setback (ft.) None
(b)

 

Minimum Offset (side) (ft.) 0 or 5
(c)

 

Minimum Offset (rear) (ft.) 15
(e) 

MINIMUM FLOOR AREA PER DWELLING UNIT 

Residential uses Non-Ground Level (sq. ft.) 

Efficiency = 420 

1 Bedroom=420 

2 Bedroom=550 

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 

Principal Structure (ft.) 35 

Accessory Structure (ft.) 25
(d)

 
(a)

All buildings in the HPD portion of the B-3 District existing prior to October 28, 2013 can be considered to be 

conforming structures relative to dimensional requirements to maintain the integrity of the Historic District. If 

such buildings are ever damaged or destroyed, they may be reconstructed exactly in their pre-damaged or pre-

destroyed location and dimensional configuration.  
(b)

Corner lots are subject to vision clearance requirements per Section 13-1-80. 
(c)

No minimum side yard offset shall be required; however, where a side yard offset is provided, it shall be not less 

than five (5) feet. Detached accessory structures and decks shall be in accord with Section 13-1-101. 

29 of 283



(d)
The Landmarks and Plan Commissions may modify the height of an accessory structure if it is located in a historic 

district or is a local landmark. 
(e)

The Landmarks and Plan Commission may, on a case-by-case basis, approve a pergola or similar structure to 

enclose an outdoor patio in the building setback area. 

 

 SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided 

by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 12
th
 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

 

 

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

30 of 283



31 of 283



32 of 283



 LANDMARKS COMMISSION LAN20170413-1 
 April 13, 2017 UNAPPROVED 
 
A regular meeting of the Landmarks Commission, City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held 
Thursday, April 13, 2017 at Cedarburg City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, lower level, 
room 2.  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Judy Jepson at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call:  Present –  Council Member Patricia Thome, Judy Jepson, Tomi Fay Forbes,    

James Pape, Robert Ross  
      
  Excused –   Tom Kubala, Doug Yip 
 
 Also Present –  City Planner Jon Censky 
 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Chairperson Jepson acknowledged that the agenda for this meeting was posted and distributed in 
compliance with the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Tomi Fay Forbes, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the minutes 
of the March 23, 2017 meeting.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Tom Kubala and 
Doug Yip excused.  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Review Proposed Modifications to Approved Architectural Plans for East Façade of the 
Building Currently Occupied by a Distillery Located at W62 N590 Washington Avenue; 
and Action Thereon.  
Don Stauss represented the project.  Regarding the east side of the building, the door furthest to 
the north was repurposed from the front of the building.  The man door will be a repurposed 
wood door.  The garage door to the south has been upgraded to a style more in keeping with the 
other doors on the east side of the building.  It will be painted white.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Jim Pape, to accept the change to the 
doors.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Tom Kubala and Doug Yip excused.  
 
Review Proposed Seasonal Patio with Roofed Pergola in the Rear/Side Yard of Fiddleheads 
Located at W62 N605 Washington Avenue; and Action Thereon.  
Jovana Cubric represented Fiddleheads.  The business would like to add an enclosed pergola 
patio on the west side of the building to expand outside seating.  Features will include a wood 

33 of 283



LANDMARKS COMMISSION LAN20170413-2 
April 13, 2017 UNAPPROVED 
 

2 

 

frame similar to the pergola now on the south side of the building, a crushed granite floor, a 
Plexiglas roof 12’ above the ground to shed rain, and comfortable seating in the 14’ x 26’ foot 
enclosed area.  A couple heaters and a natural gas fireplace will provide heat in chilly weather. 
The gas can only be turned on inside the building.  The exterior of the pergola will be 
landscaped, and the existing tree will be left in place.   
 
Motion made by Bob Ross, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve this project. 
Motion carried without a negative vote with Tom Kubala and Doug Yip excused.  
 
Review Possible Policy LM-2 Regarding Sale of Brass Landmarks Plaques; and Action 
Thereon.  
Planner Censky recently had a request for a plaque.  The first one in years, which prompted a 
written policy.  The policy as proposed is acceptable with the removal of the typographical error 
duplicating the phrase “sign is located in.”  
 
Motion made by Jim Pape, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the policy.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote with Tom Kubala and Doug Yip excused.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Tomi Fay Forbes, seconded by Bob Ross, to adjourn the meeting at 7:17 p.m. 
Motion carried without a negative vote with Tom Kubala and Doug Yip excused.  
 

Tomi Fay Forbes 
Secretary 
 

adk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34 of 283



35 of 283



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017      ITEM NO:     8. C.                 

 

TITLE:  Consider 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) for the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant and Resolution No. 2017-13 accepting the Report; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 

5/11/17) 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The CMAR is a DNR summary report used to determine the effectiveness of the 

sewerage system to meet DNR permit limits and to indicate areas of the system that may need improvement. In 

2013, no points were deducted from any categories in the report. No action for improvement in the system is 

needed. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Acceptance of the 2016 CMAR and adoption of the Resolution. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission met on May11, 2017 and discussed the CMAR summary and asked to move it to the City Council 

for action. 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: None 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Resolution No. 2017-13 

 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report Summary 

  

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Eric Hackert, Wastewater Superintendent 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT: Eric Hackert, 262-375-7900. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

36 of 283



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-13 
 

2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report – Wastewater Treatment Facility 
 
 WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources requires that the 
City of Cedarburg submit an annual Compliance Maintenance Report for its wastewater 
treatment facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the compliance maintenance program requires the adoption of a 
resolution by the governing body of the entity operating the wastewater treatment 
facility; 
   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Cedarburg authorizes the appropriate municipal officers to inform the Department of 
Natural resources that the following actions were taken by the City of Cedarburg 
Common Council: 
 

1. Reviewed the Compliance Maintenance Annual Report which is attached 
to this resolution. 

 2. No further action is necessary. 
 
 Passed and adopted this 12th day of June, 2017. 
 
      
       __________________________ 
       Kip Kinzel, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
       
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

37 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Influent Flow and Loading

1. Monthly Average Flows and (C)BOD Loadings
1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and (C)BOD loadings to your facility.

Outfall No.
701

Influent Monthly
Average Flow, MGD

x Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD

Concentration mg/L

x 8.34 = Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD
Loading, lbs/day

January 2.2952 x 202 x 8.34 = 3,874
February 1.9958 x 165 x 8.34 = 2,742

March 2.6890 x 149 x 8.34 = 3,353
April 2.8792 x 164 x 8.34 = 3,935
May 2.1802 x 220 x 8.34 = 4,007
June 1.8147 x 222 x 8.34 = 3,360
July 1.4333 x 316 x 8.34 = 3,781

August 1.3637 x 330 x 8.34 = 3,751
September 1.7299 x 187 x 8.34 = 2,696

October 1.9258 x 188 x 8.34 = 3,018
November 1.8678 x 216 x 8.34 = 3,370
December 1.8714 x 235 x 8.34 = 3,672

2. Maximum Monthly Design Flow and Design (C)BOD Loading
2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your facility.

Design Design Factor x % = % of Design
Max Month Design Flow, MGD 5.788 x 90 = 5.2092

x 100 = 5.788
Design (C)BOD, lbs/day 4587 x 90 = 4128.3

x 100 = 4587

2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and (C)BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points
earned, and score:

Months
of

Influent

Number of times
flow was greater

than 90% of

Number of times
flow was greater

than 100% of

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 90% of design

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 100% of design

January 1 0 0 0 0
February 1 0 0 0 0

March 1 0 0 0 0
April 1 0 0 0 0
May 1 0 0 0 0
June 1 0 0 0 0
July 1 0 0 0 0

August 1 0 0 0 0
September 1 0 0 0 0

October 1 0 0 0 0
November 1 0 0 0 0
December 1 0 0 0 0

 Points per each 2 1 3 2
 Exceedances 0 0 0 0
 Points 0 0 0 0

 Total Number of Points 0

0

38 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

3. Flow Meter
3.1 Was the influent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/20/2016

No
If No, please explain:

4. Sewer Use Ordinance
4.1 Did your community have a sewer use ordinance that limited or prohibited the discharge of
excessive conventional pollutants ((C)BOD, SS, or pH) or toxic substances to the sewer from
industries, commercial users, hauled waste, or residences?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

4.2 Was it necessary to enforce the ordinance?
Yes
No

If Yes, please explain:

5. Septage Receiving
5.1 Did you have requests to receive septage at your facility?
Septic Tanks Holding Tanks Grease Traps

Yes Yes Yes

No No No

5.2 Did you receive septage at your faclity? If yes, indicate volume in gallons.
Septic Tanks

Yes 0 gallons

No
Holding Tanks

Yes 5987000 gallons

No
Grease Traps

Yes 0 gallons

No
5.2.1 If yes to any of the above, please explain if plant performance is affected when receiving
any of these wastes.

Plant performance was slightly enhanced with the increase in influent BOD.

6. Pretreatment
6.1 Did your facility experience operational problems, permit violations, biosolids quality concerns,
or hazardous situations in the sewer system or treatment plant that were attributable to
commercial or industrial discharges in the last year?

Yes
No

If yes, describe the situation and your community's response.

6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.?39 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Yes
No

If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were
in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

40 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)

1. Effluent (C)BOD Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for BOD or
CBOD

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
> 10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
February 15 13.5 4 1 0 0

March 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
April 15 13.5 4 1 0 0
May 10 10 3 1 0 0
June 10 10 3 1 0 0
July 10 10 3 1 0 0

August 10 10 2 1 0 0
September 10 10 2 1 0 0

October 10 10 4 1 0 0
November 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
December 15 13.5 4 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total number of points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge. Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months
of the year, the multiplication factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

2. Flow Meter Calibration
2.1 Was the effluent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/20/2016

No 
If No, please explain:

3. Treatment Problems
3.1 What problems, if any, were experienced over the last year that threatened treatment?

n/a

4. Other Monitoring and Limits
4.1 At any time in the past year was there an exceedance of a permit limit for any other pollutants
such as chlorides, pH, residual chlorine, fecal coliform, or metals?

Yes  
No 41 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

If Yes, please explain:

4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent
toxicity (WET) test?

Yes  
No 

If Yes, please explain:

4.3 If the biomonitoring (WET) test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce
source(s) of toxicity?

Yes  
No 
N/A 

Please explain unless not applicable:

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

42 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)

1. Effluent Total Suspended Solids Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for TSS:

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
>10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
February 15 13.5 3 1 0 0

March 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
April 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
May 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
June 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
July 15 13.5 2 1 0 0

August 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
September 15 13.5 2 1 0 0

October 15 13.5 2 1 0 0
November 15 13.5 3 1 0 0
December 15 13.5 4 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of Discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
 Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication
factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

43 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Ammonia - NH3)

1. Effluent Ammonia Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly and weekly average effluent values, exceedances and points for
ammonia

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

NH3
Limit

(mg/L)

Weekly
Average

NH3
Limit

(mg/L)

Effluent
Monthly
Average

NH3
(mg/L)

Monthly
Permit
Limit

Exceed
ance

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

1

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

2

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

3

Effluent
Weekly
Average
for Week

4

Weekly
Permit
Limit

Exceed
ance

January 6.4 0 0
February 6.4 .013588235 0

March 6.4 .006611111 0
April 4 .003825 0
May 3.3 0 0
June 3.3 .027764706 0
July 3.3 .032529412 0

August 3.3 .024315789 0
September 3.3 .0305625 0

October 5.7 .028333333 0
November 6.4 .025611111 0
December 6.4 .0465625 0

Points per each exceedance of Monthly average: 10
Exceedances, Monthly: 0
Points: 0
Points per each exceedance of weekly average (when there is no monthly averge): 2.5
Exceedances, Weekly: 0
Points: 0

Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: Limit exceedances are considered for mothly OR weekly averages but not both. When a
monthly average limit exists it will be used to determine exceedances and generate points. This
will be true even if a weekly limit also exists. When a weekly average limit exists and a monthly
limit does not exist, the weekly limit will be used to determine exceedances and generate points.

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

44 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)

1. Effluent Phosphorus Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for Phosphorus

Outfall No. 001 Monthly Average
phosphorus Limit

(mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average phosphorus

(mg/L)

Months of
Discharge with a

Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

January 1 0.4 1 0
February 1 0.3 1 0

March 1 0.4 1 0
April 1 0.4 1 0
May 1 0.4 1 0
June 1 0.2 1 0
July 1 0.2 1 0

August 1 0.4 1 0
September 1 0.5 1 0

October 1 0.2 1 0
November 1 0.2 1 0
December 1 0.2 1 0

 Months of Discharge/yr 12
 Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 10
 Exceedances 0

 Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to waters of the state, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication factor
is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

45 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Biosolids Quality and Management

1. Biosolids Use/Disposal
1.1 How did you use or dispose of your biosolids? (Check all that apply)

Land applied under your permit
Publicly Distributed Exceptional Quality Biosolids
Hauled to another permitted facility
Landfilled
Incinerated
Other

NOTE: If you did not remove biosolids from your system, please describe your system type such
as lagoons, reed beds, recirculating sand filters, etc.
1.1.1 If you checked Other, please describe:

3. Biosolids Metals
Number of biosolids outfalls in your WPDES permit:

3.1 For each outfall tested, verify the biosolids metal quality values for your facility during the last
calendar year.

Outfall No. 002 - AEROBIC LIQUID SLUDGE
Parameter 80%

of
Limit

H.Q.
Limit

Ceiling
Limit

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 80%
Value

High
Quality

Ceiling

Arsenic 41 75 1.54 2.11 2.16 1.84 0 0
Cadmium 39 85 2.6 .7 1.6 .8 0 0
Copper 1500 4300 890 725 824 1040 0 0
Lead 300 840 16.3 16.1 14.3 19.2 0 0

Mercury 17 57 .594 .436 .823 .941 0 0
Molybdenum 60 75 <10.7 <5.93 6.38 <5.84 0 0

Nickel 336 420 28.5 15.8 19.3 17.2 0 0
Selenium 80 100 <10.7 <17.8 <17.9 <17.5 0 0

Zinc 2800 7500 263 263 324 394 0 0

3.1.1 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the high quality limits OR 80% of the limit for
molybdenum, nickel, or selenium = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)
1-2   (10 Points)
> 2   (15 Points)

3.1.2 If you exceeded the high quality limits, did you cumulatively track the metals loading at
each land application site? (check applicable box)

Yes
No (10 points)

N/A - Did not exceed limits or no HQ limit applies (0 points)
N/A - Did not land apply biosolids until limit was met (0 points)

3.1.3 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the ceiling limits = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)
1     (10 Points)
> 1   (15 Points)

3.1.4 Were biosolids land applied which exceeded the ceiling limit?
Yes (20 Points)
No  (0 Points)

46 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

3.1.5 If any metal limit (high quality or ceiling) was exceeded at any time, what action was taken?
Has the source of the metals been identified?

0

4. Pathogen Control (per outfall):
4.1 Verify the following information. If any information is incorrect, use the Report Issue button
under the Options header in the left-side menu.

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 435,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 616,637
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 395,948
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

47 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 669,122
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 499,058
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 337,631
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 562,414
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

48 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 284,553
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 319,865
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 389,221
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 320,382
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

49 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 335,430
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 241,546
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 761,649
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 337,631
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

50 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 499,058
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 669,122
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 395,948
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 761,649
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

51 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
Density: 435,435
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 616,637
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 241,546
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 335,430
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

52 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 320,382
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 389,221
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 319,865
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 562,414
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

53 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 04/01/2016 - 06/30/2016
Density: 284,553
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 58,686
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 51,725
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 91,270
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

54 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 93,844
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 93,240
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 158,730
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 78,125
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

55 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 58,686
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 51,725
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 91,270
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 93,844
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

56 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 93,240
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 158,730
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 341,880
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 207,907
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

57 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 189,702
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 360,082
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 199,865
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 244,584
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

58 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 172,764
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 07/01/2016 - 09/30/2016
Density: 78,125
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 207,907
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 189,702
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

59 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 360,082
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 199,865
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 244,584
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 172,764
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

60 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit: Fecal Coliform
Sample Dates: 10/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density: 341,880
Sample Concentration Amount: CFU/G TS
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

4.2 If exceeded Class B limit or did not meet the process criteria at the time of land application.
4.2.1 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?

Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken?

0

5. Vector Attraction Reduction (per outfall):
5.1 Verify the following information. If any of the information is incorrect, use the Report Issue
button under the Options header in the left-side menu.

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 03/31/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 06/30/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Incorporation when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 06/30/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

61 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 09/30/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?
Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken?

0

6. Biosolids Storage
6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatment
facility have either on-site or off-site?

>= 180 days (0 Points)
150 - 179 days (10 Points)
120 - 149 days (20 Points)
90 - 119 days (30 Points)
< 90 days (40 Points)
N/A (0 Points)

6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why.

0

7. Issues
7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management:

n/a

62 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

63 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)

1. Plant Staffing
1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

Could use more help/staff for:

1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and
fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

2. Preventative Maintenance
2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on
major equipment items?

Yes (Continue with question 2) 

No (40 points)


If No, please explain, then go to question 3:

2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication,
and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment?

Yes
No (10 points) 

2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and
filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly?

Yes

Paper file system
Computer system
Both paper and computer system

No (10 points)

0

3. O&M Manual
3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M and Manufacturer Equipment Manuals that can be used
as a reference when needed?

Yes
No

4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs
4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant.

Excellent
Very good
Good
Fair
Poor

Describe your rating:

The treatment shows signs of age but is operating as designed.64 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

65 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Operator Certification and Education

1. Operator-In-Charge
1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year?

Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

Name:
ERIC HACKERT

Certification No:
10352

0

2. Certification Requirements
2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.56 and 114.57, Wisconsin Administrative Code, what level
and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge (OIC) to operate the wastewater
treatment plant and what level and subclass(es) were held by the operator-in-charge?

Sub
Class

SubClass Description WWTP OIC
Advanced OIT Basic Advanced

A1 Suspended Growth Processes X X
A2 Attached Growth Processes X
A3 Recirculating Media Filters
A4 Ponds, Lagoons and Natural X
A5 Anaerobic Treatment Of Liquid
B Solids Separation X X
C Biological Solids/Sludges X X
P Total Phosphorus X X
N Total Nitrogen
D Disinfection X X
L Laboratory X X
U Unique Treatment Systems X
SS Sanitary Sewage Collection X NA NA NA

2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level and subclass(es) to operate this
plant? (Note: Certification in subclass SS, N and A5 not required in 2016; subclass SS is basic level
only.)

Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

0

3. Succession Planning
3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency plan
to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or more
of the following options (check all that apply)?

One or more additional certified operators on staff 
An arrangement with another certified operator 
An arrangement with another community with a certified operator 
An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to
be certified within one year
A consultant to serve as your certified operator 
None of the above (20 points) 

If "None of the above" is selected, please explain:

0

4. Continuing Education Credits
66 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing
Education Credits at the following rates?
OIT and Basic Certification:

Averaging 6 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 6 CECs per year. 

Advanced Certification:
Averaging 8 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 8 CECs per year. 

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

67 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Financial Management

1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:  

Christy Mertes, City Administrator/Treasurer

Telephone:
262-375-7606 (XXX) XXX-XXXX

E-Mail Address
(optional):

cmertes@ci.cedarburg.wi.us

2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points)

If No, please explain:

2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:

2016
0-2 years ago (0 points) 

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A (private facility) 

2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points) 

0

REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]
3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:

2016
1-2 years ago (0 points)

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A

If N/A, please explain:

3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity

3.2.1  Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 1,954,094.34

3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest,
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)

$ 0.00

3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $ 1,954,094.34

3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + $ 754,790.55

68 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - $ 114,649.02

3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for CMAR
Reporting Year $ 2,594,235.87

All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.

3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.

Replaced UV bulbs in Bank B,Replaced level sensor in gravity thickener, replaced HMI for UV
system,replaced influent flow meter,replaced effluent sampler,Replaced portable air monitoring
meters, replaced 2 bearings on oxidation ditch.

3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $ 933,163.00
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the SectionInstructions link under Info
header in the left-side menu.

3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)?

Yes
No

If No, please explain.

0

4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?

Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.

No

Project
#

Project Description Estimated
Cost

Approximate
Construction

Year
1 St. John Ave will have 1444 ft of sewer replaced and 2 manholes. 190000 2019

2 Highland Drive will have 2135 ft of forcemain and sewer replaced and upsized and 7
manholes will be replaced.

290000 2019

3 Sunnyside - Edgewater to Highland 153500 2017
4 Madison - Walnut to Pine 35000 2019
5 Hilgen/Jackson - Washington to Spring 125000 2017
6 Portland Road - Hilbert to Highland 45000 2019
7 Hillcrest - Jackson to Lincoln 130000 2016
8 Fair St - Evergreen to Washington 70000 2019
9 Sommerset Road Pioneer to Wirth 70000 2018
10 New lift Station and force main at Highland Rd 2000000 2019
11 New digestor blower with level monitoring controls 80000 2018

5. Financial Management General Comments

Financially sound.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND USE
6. Collection System
6.1 Energy Usage 69 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

6.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:

COLLECTION SYSTEM PUMPAGE: Total Power Consumed
Number of Municipally Owned Pump/Lift Stations: 10

Electricity Consumed
(kWh)

Natural Gas Consumed
(therms)

January 32,754 80

February 26,676 215

March 26,652 159

April 27,808 37

May 25,934 28

June 21,514 14

July 21,230 20

August 24,154 64

September 20,434 19

October 23,872 40

November 24,478 50

December 24,900 150

Total 300,406 876
Average 25,034 73

6.1.2 Comments:

The natural gas use in our collection system is strictly for standby generators.

6.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
6.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your pump/lift stations (Check all that apply):

Comminution or Screening
Extended Shaft Pumps
Flow Metering and Recording
Pneumatic Pumping
SCADA System
Self-Priming Pumps
Submersible Pumps
Variable Speed Drives
Other:

6.2.2 Comments:

6.3 Has an Energy Study been performed for your pump/lift stations?
No
Yes

Year:

By Whom: 70 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Describe and Comment:

6.4 Future Energy Related Equipment

6.4.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
pump/lift stations?

We are working replacing 3 other stations to small submersible units.

7. Treatment Facility
7.1 Energy Usage
7.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:

TREATMENT PLANT: Total Power Consumed/Month
Electricity
Consumed

(kWh)

Total Influent
Flow (MG)

Electricity
Consumed/

Flow
(kWh/MG)

Total Influent
BOD (1000 lbs)

Electricity
Consumed/

Total Influent
BOD

(kWh/1000lbs)

Natural Gas
Consumed
(therms)

January 97,792 71.15 1,374 120.09 814 1,000

February 96,659 57.88 1,670 79.52 1,216 1,380

March 94,674 83.36 1,136 103.94 911 1,202

April 99,197 86.38 1,148 118.05 840 659

May 94,838 67.59 1,403 124.22 763 409

June 106,996 54.44 1,965 100.80 1,061 52

July 102,566 44.43 2,308 117.21 875 4

August 106,828 42.27 2,527 116.28 919 1

September 105,059 51.90 2,024 80.88 1,299 2

October 99,287 59.70 1,663 93.56 1,061 5

November 92,465 56.03 1,650 101.10 915 80

December 94,002 58.01 1,620 113.83 826 615

Total 1,190,363 733.14 1,269.48 5,409

Average 99,197 61.10 1,707 105.79 958 451

7.1.2 Comments:

The usage of natural gas for the treatment plant consists only for the boilers heating the our
control building, and 1 gas forced air heater in our garage. None of the gas is used for the
treatment process which seems to make the comparison with BOD inaccurate information. Also
we have found that reducing our electric usage allowed us to be reclassified and our electric bill
has increased after spending on efficient equipment.

7.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
7.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your treatment facility (Check all that apply):

Aerobic Digestion
Anaerobic Digestion
Biological Phosphorus Removal
Coarse Bubble Diffusers
Dissolved O2 Monitoring and Aeration Control
Effluent Pumping
Fine Bubble Diffusers 71 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Mechanical Sludge Processing
Nitrification
SCADA System
UV Disinfection
Variable Speed Drives
Other:

7.2.2 Comments:

none

7.3 Future Energy Related Equipment

7.3.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
treatment facility?

We currently do not plan on any upgrades. Also we have found that reducing our electric usage
allowed us to be reclassified and our electric bill has increased after large spending on efficient
equipment.

8. Biogas Generation

8.1 Do you generate/produce biogas at your facility?
No
Yes

If Yes, how is the biogas used (Check all that apply):
Flared Off
Building Heat
Process Heat
Generate Electricity
Other:

9. Energy Efficiency Study

9.1 Has an Energy Study been performed for your treatment facility?
No
Yes

Entire facility
Year:

By Whom:

Describe and Comment:

Part of the facility
Year:

72 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

By Whom:

Describe and Comment:

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

73 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems

1. Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
1.1 Do you have a CMOM program that is being implemented?

Yes
No

If No, explain:

1.2 Do you have a CMOM program that contains all the applicable components and items
according to Wisc. Adm Code NR 210.23 (4)?

Yes
No (30 points)
N/A

If No or N/A, explain:

1.3 Does your CMOM program contain the following components and items? (check the
components and items that apply)

Goals [NR 210.23 (4)(a)]
Describe the major goals you had for your collection system last year:

1.Clean 50% of sanitary sewer system annually.
2.Clean 100 % of storm catch basins annually.
3.Visually inspect 11 lift stations weekly.
4.Clean all lift station wet wells 3 times a year.
5.Root foam 2500 ft of sanitary sewer annually.
6.Inspect 30% of manholes annually and repair as needed.
7.Televise 25% of sanitary sewer system annually.
8.Repair small sanitary sewer leaks with lining as identified.
9.Repair leaking manhole with injected sealant or replace as identified.
10.Continue with 10 year sewer replacement program.

Did you accomplish them?
Yes
No

If No, explain:

Organization [NR 210.23 (4) (b)]

Does this chapter of your CMOM include:

Organizational structure and positions (eg. organizational chart and position descriptions)
Internal and external lines of communication responsibilities
Person(s) responsible for reporting overflow events to the department and the public

Legal Authority [NR 210.23 (4) (c)]
What is the legally binding document that regulates the use of your sewer system?
Cedarburg Sewer Ordinance
If you have a Sewer Use Ordinance or other similar document, when was it last reviewed and
revised? (MM/DD/YYYY) 11/10/2016
Does your sewer use ordinance or other legally binding document address the following:

Private property inflow and infiltration
New sewer and building sewer design, construction, installation, testing and inspection
Rehabilitated sewer and lift station installation, testing and inspection
Sewage flows satellite system and large private users are monitored and controlled, as
necessary 74 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Fat, oil and grease control
Enforcement procedures for sewer use non-compliance

Operation and Maintenance [NR 210.23 (4) (d)]
Does your operation and maintenance program and equipment include the following:

Equipment and replacement part inventories
Up-to-date sewer system map
A management system (computer database and/or file system) for collection system
information for O&M activities, investigation and rehabilitation
A description of routine operation and maintenance activities (see question 2 below)
Capacity assessment program
Basement back assessment and correction
Regular O&M training

Design and Performance Provisions [NR 210.23 (4) (e)]

What standards and procedures are established for the design, construction, and inspection of
the sewer collection system, including building sewers and interceptor sewers on private
property?

State Plumbing Code, DNR NR 110 Standards and/or local Municipal Code Requirements
Construction, Inspection, and Testing
Others:

Overflow Emergency Response Plan [NR 210.23 (4) (f)]

Does your emergency response capability include:

Responsible personnel communication procedures
Response order, timing and clean-up
Public notification protocols
Training
Emergency operation protocols and implementation procedures

Annual Self-Auditing of your CMOM Program [NR 210.23 (5)]

Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):

Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
Lift Station Evaluation Report
Others:

0

2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning 50   % of system/year

Root removal .8   % of system/year

Flow monitoring 10   % of system/year

Smoke testing 0   % of system/year

Sewer line
televising 24   % of system/year

Manhole
inspections 35   % of system/year

Lift station O&M 52   # per L.S./year

Manhole
rehabilitation

75 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

6   % of manholes rehabbed

Mainline
rehabilitation 17   % of sewer lines rehabbed

Private sewer
inspections 5   % of system/year

Private sewer I/I
removal 0   % of private services

River or water
crossings .1   % of pipe crossings evaluated or maintained

Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:

3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.

32.5 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches

2.7 Annual average precipitation (for your location)

54 Miles of sanitary sewer

10 Number of lift stations 

0 Number of lift station failures 

0 Number of sewer pipe failures

0 Number of basement backup occurrences

19 Number of complaints

1.655 Average daily flow in MGD (if available)

2.879 Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available) 

Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)

3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:
0.00 Lift station failures (failures/year)

0.00 Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)

0.00 Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)

0.00 Basement backups (number/sewer mile)

0.35 Complaints (number/sewer mile)

1.7 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)

0.0 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)

4. Overflows

LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OFERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated

Volume (MG)

 None reported

** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work
on this section until corrected.

5. Infiltration / Inflow (I/I)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?

Yes
No 76 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

If Yes, please describe:

5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems in
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?

Yes
No

If Yes, please describe:

5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years:

We have purchased flow monitoring equipment and have begun to monitor wet weather events
throughout the city.

5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system?

The city annually repairs or replaces mainline sewer. We have begun a program spot repairing
leaking manholes and mainline sewer lines with our own staff.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

77 of 283



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Cedarburg Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

5/5/2017 2016

Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0020222

SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING
FACTORS

SECTION
POINTS

 Influent A 4 3 12
 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40
 TSS A 4 5 20
 Ammonia A 4 5 20
 Phosphorus A 4 3 12
 Biosolids A 4 5 20
 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4
 OpCert A 4 1 4
 Financial A 4 1 4
 Collection A 4 3 12

 TOTALS 37 148
 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 4.00

Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)

78 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                         ITEM NO:  8. D. 

                           

TITLE: Presentation of Adlai Horn Park Restoration Plan; and action thereon (Parks, Recreation & 

Forestry Board – 2016-2017) 
 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  After Mercury Marine has completed the creek cleanup they are required to restore the 

park to its original condition.  This is an opportunity to make the park better than it was and that is why the park 

board started looking at various options for the park over a year ago.  Several public meetings were held to 

discuss the future of the park.  Input was received from residents, neighbors of the park, and Cedarburg Select 

Baseball.  The motion made by the Park Board was that the Adlai Horn Park plan should consist of a restored 

island, bio-stabilization of creekbank, council ring/outdoor classroom, accessible shelter structure, fishing 

platforms, two tennis courts with no lights, open pickup play field, a fully restored baseball field, removable 

outfield fence, reinstalled existing bleachers on concrete slabs, above grade fenced dugout area with benches, 

bathroom/concessions/storage building, batting cages, 8’ wide asphalt paved pathways, hardwood trees 

throughout the park including screening trees, park benches on concrete pads, picnic areas with four tables in 

each of the four areas, canoe/kayak launch platform with accessible access ramp, refurbished parking lot and 

regraded plants/lawn.  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  Park Board recommendation – see 

above 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: 

none 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

            Park Plan, November 9, 2016 Park Board Minutes, December 7, 2016 Park Board Minutes 

            Tennis Court lighting cost, Pickleball Courts cost, August 7, 2013 Park Board Minutes, 

            History of City Baseball and Fields,  October 14, 2013 Council Meeting Minutes (pickleball courts) 

            Budget Numbers 

             

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

 (375-7611) 

                                                                  
 

 

79 of 283



16

22
0

60'

65'

60'

65'

46
'

Seatin
g  for 52

New Baseball Field

Seating  for 52

776 - E
st. 

BFE

770

780

770

774

774

774

774

774

774

772

771

769

773

773

775

775

774

771

771

771

768
767

771

772
773

772

772

771

2%

slope

777

772
771

771

772
773

774

771

777'-9"

173
326

50

50

54

Columbia R
oad

47 EXISTING 
SPACES 

173

780

Wood Plank
Fishing Platform

Cantilevered From
Creekbank (5)

Existing Arched Wood Pedestrian Bridge

W
at

er
 F

lo
w

W
at

er
 F

lo
w

W
ate

r F
low

Canoe / Kayak Launch,
Boat Tie-up

Stone 'Steps' with
Wheelchair Ramp

Proposed Development Components 

New 'Adlai Horn Island' Established 

1

2
Kayak - Canoe Launch, with HC Ramp 3
(4) Picnic Areas, (5) Picnic Benches Each Area 4

Refurbish Subgrade Throughout Park, 
Plant Grass

5

New Baseball Field, Chain-link Fence 
Backstop (No Outfield Fence)

6

Existing Bleachers Reinstalled on 
Concrete Pads (2)

7

8

9

'Council Ring' Outdoor Classroom10

Unobstructed  View to Gazebo or 
Shelter Structure from Parking 
Area

11

12

3

4

4

15

7

16

9

20

14

8

2

17

Existing Parking Area Modified - 35 Existing 
Spaces, 36 Spaces Proposed, Smaller Paved 
Footprint, Lowered Average Grade 

780

770

Bio-Stabilization  & Habitat Creation 
along Entire Creekbank and on 'New 
Horn Island'

12

(95) Newly Planted Native Species Tall 
Hardwood Trees,  in Variety, Min 3" Caliper,  
on Mainland & on Island

13 8' Wide Asphalt-Paved Walking/Vehicular  
Service Path - 14,248 SF

14

20' Diameter Gazebo or Other Shelter 
Type Structure

15

Wood Fishing Platforms - (5)16

Regulation Size Pitching Practice 
& Warmup Alleys (2)

17

Baseball Infield, Baseball Outfield & Fireworks Launch Area18

Landscape Screening19
Park Bench on Concrete Slab At 
Creekbank  Accessed by Rustic Path or 
Paved Asphalt Path,  3' Wide, (5) Total

20

Regulation Tennis Courts - (2) with 12' 
Fence, No Lights 

Wetland to be Preserved

Adlai Horn Park Proposed Site Development Diagram

NORTH

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’

As Approved Dec 7, 2016 in Board Session

4

New Pre-Fabricated  1-Story Bathroom, Concessions, Storage 
Building - 20' x 30', no Subgrade Water or Sanitary Service, Set on 
'Raft' Concrete Slab Foundation

Multi  P
urpose

20' x 32'

New Lenore Horn Wildlife
Refuge

Seaso
nal B

atti
ng C

age
s

(2) 14' x 58'

Cedar Creek

Cedar Creek

10

5

1
Cedar Creek

6

18

12

Cedar Creek

14

18

21

Jan 20, 2017 - Revised

Rotate Tennis Courts, Move to North,
Move & Align Temporary 
Batting Cages

Feb 22, 2017 - Revised

Move Baseball Field and Tennis Courts
East to Location Closer to Pre-Creek 
Cleanup Location, Extend & 
Reconfigure Paved Walking/Vehicular  
Service Path  

12

5

20
Picnic

Picnic
Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

4

13 9

16

16

20

20

13

13

13

19

19

9

13

17

11

Cedarburg Parks Recreation & Forestry
Mikko Hilvo, Director

December 7, 2016

Approved in Park Board Session with 
Citizen Testimony and Park Board 
Discussion

Trinity Lutheran Church

Picnic

Picnic
Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic
Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

Picnic

35 EXISTING 
SPACES, 36 
PROPOSED 

June 7, 2017 - Revised

Organize & Clarify Legend,  Add Legend 
Tags, Generally Clarify Plan and Titles, 
Change from Rectangular Picnic Shelter 
to 8-Sided Gazebo 

Cedarburg WI

Council Ring
Outdoor

Classroom

Removable Outfield Fence21

Existing Parking Area Proposed to be Modified as Follows:
East Edge moved West 10'
Driveway Narrowed to 18'
North Edge Moved North toward Columbia Avenue 7'
New Paving and Subgrade
Footprint of Lot Lowered 4' and North Edge Slope Graded to 
Screen Cars from View with Assistance of Landscape Screening

80 of 283



Adlai Horn Budget 1- 1 of 2
6/7/17

Project Name

   Budget Analysis 1

Prepared by: Mikko Hilvo, Director Parks Recreation & Forestry, City of Cedarburg

Initiated date:

Revised date:

Exhibit 'A' Used with Adlai Horn Park Proposed Site Development Diagram, Dec 7, 2016

Site Work, Finished (Square Feet): 390,000
   'Bricks & Mortar' (Square Feet): N/A

     SF Total: 390,000
     Construction start date (Estimated): N/A

    Construction end date (Estimated): N/A
    Construction duration (Estimated): 3 Months

1 A B C D E F G H 1

2
Projected 
Per-Unit 
Amount

Projected Funding 
Amount

Projected Sub-Total Likely Source
Amount Likely 

Covered by Mercury 
Marine

Amount Likely 
Covered by City or 

Private 
2

3 3

4 4

5 1 Modify Parking Lot 5

6 Excavation, Spoils & Grading $32,000 Mercury Marine $32,000 6

7 Subgrade Preparation, Paving & Striping $52,000 Mercury Marine $52,000 7

8 Lighting $16,000 Mercury Marine $16,000 8

9 $100,000 9

10 2 The New Lenore Horn Wildlife Refuge Island 10

11 12 Bio-Stabilization & Habitat Creation along Entire Island Creekbank (857 LF) $49 $42,000 Mercury Marine $42,000 11

12 13 (23) Native Species Tall Hardwood Trees on Island,  in Variety, Min 3" Caliper $775 $17,825 Mercury Marine $17,825 12

13 2 Naturalized Meadow Planting, Native Prairie Species $9,000 Mercury Marine $9,000 13

14 16 Wood Fishing Platform, Island - (4) $3,500 $14,000 City, or Private Share $14,000 14

15 $82,825 15

16 3 Kayak Canoe Launch w/ HC Ramp 16

17 Concrete & Wood Canoe/Kayak Launch, (2) Place $44,000 City, or Private Share $44,000 17

18 Concrete Steps to Water Level from Launch Level $8,000 City, or Private Share $8,000 18

19 Wheelchair Ramp & Disabled Patron 'Lift Crane' $27,500 City, or Private Share $27,500 19

20 $79,500 20

21 4 (4) Picnic Areas 21

22 (20) Picnic Tables w/ Integral Benches $1,000 $20,000 City, or Private Share $20,000 22

23 $20,000 23

24 5 Regulation Tennis Courts 24

25 (2) Courts with 12' Fence, Subgrade Preparation, Paving & Striping, No Lights $70,000 $140,000 Mercury Marine $140,000 25

26 $140,000 26

27 6 New Baseball Field 27

28 18 Baseball Infield, Baseball Outfield & Fireworks Launch Area $250,000 Mercury Marine $250,000 28

29 Chain-link Fence Backstop & Team Bench Enclosures $38,000 Mercury Marine $38,000 29

30 7 Existing Bleachers Reinstalled on New Concrete Pads (2) $6,500 Mercury Marine $6,500 30

31 21 Removable Outfield Fence $2,500 Mercury Marine $2,500 31

32 17 Regulation Size Pitching Practice & Warmup Alleys (2) $3,200 Mercury Marine $3,200 32

33 $300,200 33

34 8 1-Story Concessions, Storage Building - 20' x 30' 34

35 Pre-Fabricated Structure w/ Prefab Toilets Inside $45,000 City, or Private Share 35

36 Electric Service to Building $12,500 City, or Private Share 36

37 $57,500 $57,500 37

38 9 Refurbish Subgrade Throughout Park, Plant Grass, SF Basis, 390,000 SF (8.95AC) $0.75 $292,500 Mercury Marine $292,500 38

39 $292,500 39

40 10 'Council Ring' Outdoor Classroom 40

41 Subgrade Preparation, Path Approaches & Immediate Surroundings, Pavers $7,500 City, or Private Share $7,500 41

42 Council Ring' Structure (Masonry & Concrete) $11,800 City, or Private Share $11,800 42

43 $19,300 43

44 12 Bio-Stabilization & Habitat Creation along Mainland Creekbank (1,260 LF) $48 $61,000 Mercury Marine $61,000 44

45 $61,000 45

46 13 (72) Native Species Tall Hardwood Trees on Mainland,  in Variety, Min 3" Caliper $775 $55,800 Mercury Marine $55,800 46

47 $55,800 47

48 14 8' Wide Asphalt-Paved Walking/Vehicular Service Path - 14,222 SF $4.50 $64,000 Mercury Marine $64,000 48

49 $64,000 49

50 15 20' Diameter Gazebo or Other Shelter Type Structure $65,000 City, or Private Share $65,000 50

51 $65,000 51

52 16 Wood Fishing Platform, Mainland- (2) $3,500 $7,000 City, or Private Share $7,000 52

53 $7,000 53

54 19 Landscape Screening $25,000 Mercury Marine $25,000 54

55 55

56 20 Park Bench on Concrete Slab At Creekbank, Paved Asphalt Path,  3' Wide, (5) Total $2,400 $12,000 $12,000 City, or Private Share $12,000 56

57 57

58 58

59 59

60

$1,381,625
60

61

$1,107,325
61

62

$274,300
62

Proposed Development Components 

Adlai Horn Park Plan, Dec 7, 2016, Cedarburg  WI

6/7/17

All Proposed Development Components, Using Cost-Saving Construction 
Methods for Accessory Storage Building

Total Projected Costs, From Whatever Source, All Categories 'Bricks & Mortar' Labor

Total Projected Costs, Likely Covered by Mercury Marine

Total Projected Costs, Likely Covered by City or Private Share

81 of 283



Adlai Horn Budget 2- 1 of 1
6/7/17

Project Name

   Budget Analysis 2

Prepared by: Mikko Hilvo, Director Parks Recreation & Forestry, City of Cedarburg

Initiated date:

Revised date:

Exhibit 'A' Used with Adlai Horn Park Proposed Site Development Diagram, Dec 7, 2016

Site Work, Finished (Square Feet): 390,000
   'Bricks & Mortar' (Square Feet): N/A

     SF Total: 390,000
     Construction start date (Estimated): N/A

    Construction end date (Estimated): N/A
    Construction duration (Estimated): 3 Months

1 A B C D E F G H 1

2
Projected 
Per-Unit 
Amount

Projected Funding 
Amount

Projected Sub-Total Likely Source
Amount Likely 

Covered by Mercury 
Marine

Amount Likely 
Covered by City or 

Private 
2

3 3

4 4

5 1 Modify Parking Lot 5

6 Excavation, Spoils & Grading $32,000 Mercury Marine $32,000 6

7 Subgrade Preparation, Paving & Striping $52,000 Mercury Marine $52,000 7

8 Lighting $16,000 Mercury Marine $16,000 8

9 $100,000 9

10 2 The New Lenore Horn Wildlife Refuge Island 10

11 12 Bio-Stabilization & Habitat Creation along Entire Island Creekbank (857 LF) $49 $42,000 Mercury Marine $42,000 11

12 13 (23) Native Species Tall Hardwood Trees on Island,  in Variety, Min 3" Caliper $775 $17,825 Mercury Marine $17,825 12

13 2 Naturalized Meadow Planting, Native Prairie Species $9,000 Mercury Marine $9,000 13

14 16 Wood Fishing Platform, Island - (4) $3,500 $14,000 City, or Private Share $14,000 14

15 $82,825 15

16 3 Kayak Canoe Launch w/ HC Ramp 16

17 Concrete & Wood Canoe/Kayak Launch, (2) Place $44,000 City, or Private Share $44,000 17

18 Concrete Steps to Water Level from Launch Level $8,000 City, or Private Share $8,000 18

19 Wheelchair Ramp & Disabled Patron 'Lift Crane' $27,500 City, or Private Share $27,500 19

20 $79,500 20

21 4 (4) Picnic Areas 21

22 (20) Picnic Tables w/ Integral Benches $1,000 $20,000 City, or Private Share $20,000 22

23 $20,000 23

24 5 Regulation Tennis Courts 24

25 (2) Courts with 12' Fence, Subgrade Preparation, Paving & Striping, No Lights $70,000 $140,000 Mercury Marine $140,000 25

26 $140,000 26

27 6 New Baseball Field 27

28 18 Baseball Infield, Baseball Outfield & Fireworks Launch Area $250,000 Mercury Marine $250,000 28

29 Chain-link Fence Backstop & Team Bench Enclosures $38,000 Mercury Marine $38,000 29

30 7 Existing Bleachers Reinstalled on New Concrete Pads (2) $6,500 Mercury Marine $6,500 30

31 21 Removable Outfield Fence $2,500 Mercury Marine $2,500 31

32 17 Regulation Size Pitching Practice & Warmup Alleys (2) $3,200 Mercury Marine $3,200 32

33 $300,200 33

34 8 1-Story Concessions, Storage Building - 20' x 30' 34

35 Traditional Structure w/ Traditional Toilets $180,000 City, or Private Share 35

36 Electric Service to Building $12,500 City, or Private Share 36

37 Sanitary Holding Tank $7,000 City, or Private Share 37

38  'City' Water Service $9,000 City, or Private Share 38

39 $192,500 $192,500 39

40 9 Refurbish Subgrade Throughout Park, Plant Grass, SF Basis, 390,000 SF (8.95AC) $0.75 $292,500 Mercury Marine $292,500 40

41 $292,500 41

42 10 'Council Ring' Outdoor Classroom 42

43 Subgrade Preparation, Path Approaches & Immediate Surroundings, Pavers $7,500 City, or Private Share $7,500 43

44 Council Ring' Structure (Masonry & Concrete) $11,800 City, or Private Share $11,800 44

45 $19,300 45

46 12 Bio-Stabilization & Habitat Creation along Mainland Creekbank (1,260 LF) $48 $61,000 Mercury Marine $61,000 46

47 $61,000 47

48 13 (72) Native Species Tall Hardwood Trees on Mainland,  in Variety, Min 3" Caliper $775 $55,800 Mercury Marine $55,800 48

49 $55,800 49

50 14 8' Wide Asphalt-Paved Walking/Vehicular Service Path - 14,222 SF $4.50 $64,000 Mercury Marine $64,000 50

51 $64,000 51

52 15 20' Diameter Gazebo or Other Shelter Type Structure $65,000 City, or Private Share $65,000 52

53 $65,000 53

54 16 Wood Fishing Platform, Mainland- (2) $3,500 $7,000 City, or Private Share $7,000 54

55 $7,000 55

56 19 Landscape Screening $25,000 Mercury Marine $25,000 56

57 57

58 58

59 20 Park Bench on Concrete Slab At Creekbank, Paved Asphalt Path,  3' Wide, (5) Total $2,400 $12,000 $12,000 City, or Private Share $12,000 59

60 60

61 61

62

$1,516,625
62

63

$1,107,325
63

64

$409,300
64

Proposed Development Components 

Adlai Horn Park Plan, Dec 7, 2016, Cedarburg  WI

6/7/17

All Proposed Development Components, Using Traditional Construction 
Methods for Accessory Storage Building

Total Projected Costs, All Categories 'Bricks & Mortar' Labor

Total Projected Costs, Likely Covered by Mercury Marine

Total Projected Costs, Likely Covered by City or Private Share

82 of 283



83 of 283



84 of 283



85 of 283



86 of 283



87 of 283



88 of 283



89 of 283



90 of 283



91 of 283



92 of 283



93 of 283



94 of 283



95 of 283



96 of 283



97 of 283



98 of 283



99 of 283



100 of 283



101 of 283



102 of 283



103 of 283



104 of 283



105 of 283



106 of 283



107 of 283



108 of 283



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  June 12, 2017                                                            ITEM NO:       9.  A. 
 

TITLE:  Accept and refer to Plan Commission the rezoning petition from S. Duane Strobel, Jr. to 

rezone the 18.70 acre parcel located on the east side of Sheboygan Road approximately 506’ south 

of Highway 60 from Rs-1 Temporary Single Family District to Rm-2 (PUD) Residential Multiple 

Family and Planned Unit Development Overlay District; and action thereon 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The petitioner is requesting approval to rezone, as indicated above, his vacant 

18.7-acre parcel located directly north of The Glen at Cedar Creek subdivision on the east side of 

Sheboygan Road. This project will consist of 12, sixteen-unit apartment buildings, served by a 

private driveway/parking system resulting in a total of 192 units at a density of 10.3 units/gross acres 

or 14.9 units/net acre (Net acreage = Gross acreage minus right-of-way dedication and conservancy 

area).  The plans propose 383 parking stalls, 192 of which will be enclosed and the remaining 191 

will be surface stalls, resulting in a count of 2 parking stalls per unit. City Code requires 1.5 stalls per 

unit.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Accept the petition and refer it to the Plan Commission for their review and recommendation 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

N/A 
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:   

Impact Fees - 192 units @ $5,202.34/unit = $998,849.28 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Rezoning  Petition 
 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  S. Duey Stroebel 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

109 of 283



110 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                          ITEM NO:  9. B. 

           

                 

TITLE: Consider closing Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert Avenue from 5:00 a.m. to 3:00 

p.m. on July 29, 2017 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride and demonstrations; and action thereon  
 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Wisconsin Women’s Cycling Federation is requesting the section of Portland Road 

closed to motor vehicle traffic between the eastern edge of Mill Street and the eastern edge of Cedar Creek Park 

between the hours of 5:00 AM and 3:00 PM.  It will be used as the Start/Finish area for the Women’s Century 

Ride routes as well as Wisconsin Bike Festival demonstrations and exhibitions.  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  none 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: none 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: map 

    

          

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Cindy Petted, Chief Soigneur, Wisconsin Women Cycling 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Cindy Petted                                        
                  
 

 

111 of 283



112 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                             ITEM NO:  9. C. 

 

                           

TITLE: Consider closing portions of Portland Road, Mill Street, Washington Avenue and Columbia Road for 

a Foot Cycling Event from noon to 2:00 p.m. on July 29, 2017 in celebration of the 200
th

 Anniversary of the 

invention of the bicycle; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Wisconsin Women’s Federation is requesting  sections of Portland, Mill, 

Washington, and Columbia Road closed from 12pm – 2pm on July 29 for a foot cycling event in celebration of 

the 200
th

 anniversary of the invention of the bicycle. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: none 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: none 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:             map 

             

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Cindy Petted, Chief Soigneur, Wisconsin Women Cycling 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:   

                                                                  
 

 

113 of 283



114 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                                ITEM NO:  9. D. 

    

                        

TITLE:  Consider closing Portland Road between Mill Street and Hilbert Avenue from 5:00 a.m. – 7:30 

a.m. on July 30, 2017 for the Women’s Century Bike Ride; and action thereon 
 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Woman’s Cycling Federation is requesting the section of Portland Road closed to 

motor vehicle traffic between the eastern edge of Mill Street and the eastern edge of Cedar Creek Park between 

the hours of 5:00 AM and 7:00 AM.  We will be using it as the Start area for the Women’s Century Ride.  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  none 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  none 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  map 

        

      

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Cindy Petted, Chief Soigneur, Wisconsin Women Cycling 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Cindy Petted 

                                                                  
 

 

115 of 283



116 of 283



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                           ITEM NO:      9. E. 

 

                           

TITLE:  Consider request of The Shinery LLC, Elizabeth Reissman, Agent, to amend the premises description 

of the “Class A” liquor license of The Shinery at W63 N706 Washington Avenue to sell alcohol and provide 

limited wine sampling on the patio connected to the building they are located in during Strawberry Fest and 

Wine and Harvest Fest; and action thereon 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The owners The Shinery are seeking permission to alter their “Class A” liquor license 

premise description to be able to sell their products outside on the patio connected to the building they are 

located in at Strawberry Fest and Wine and Harvest Festival.   Specifically, they would like to sell moonshine 

cocktails in half gallon jugs.   

 

The Shinery does not have the type of license that allows them to do this.  The business has a “Class A” liquor 

license.  According to State Statutes Sec. 125.51(2) “Class A” licenses may sell intoxicating liquor to 

consumers only in original packages or containers for off-premises consumption.  “Class A” licensees may also 

provide persons of legal drinking age no more than one taste sample not exceeding 0.5 fluid ounces of 

intoxicating liquor other than wine for consumption on premises between the hours of 11 a.m. and 7 p.m.  A 

call to Tom Ourada of the Department of Revenue confirms this.  The Shinery is not allowed to sell cocktails; 

anything they sell must be in original packages or containers for off-premise consumption, with the exception 

of limited sampling. 

 

After being informed of this, the owners of The Shinery have amended their request to sell wine and other 

products that are typically sold in the store on the second floor on the attached deck on the lower level of the 

building for off-premise consumption, and to do sampling of wine as permitted by State Statutes (two free 

samples of wine per person of not more than three fluid ounces each, for consumption on the premises between 

the hours of 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.) 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:     Requests from The Shinery 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Elizabeth Reissmann 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Connie McHugh, City Clerk 
 
 
 

 

117 of 283



118 of 283



119 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. F. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider award of engineering services contract for the 2017 NR 216 storm water compliance 

reporting; and action thereon. 

         

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: As part of our NR216 storm water permit, the DNR requires an on-going Illicit 

Discharge Detection program to test for storm water pollutants in various outfalls. The program involves dry 

weather flow sampling and lab testing to search for specific pollutants. If the test readings come back positive, 

a follow-up investigation to determine the source is required. 

 

In previous years AECOM has provided this service for the City, and they have also compiled the required 

comprehensive annual report. At the request of the Common Council, I have obtained a second proposal this 

year from Ruekert and Mielke. 

 

Ruekert and Mielke’s price was $7,225 and AECOM was at $8,425. However, when I inquired about the 

required storm sewer mapping and exhibits, Ruekert and Mielke advised this would add another $3,000 to their 

proposal.  

  

  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the total cost to complete the reports required by DNR, staff is 

recommending we award the contract to AECOM for $8425. 

     

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A. 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $40,000 is budgeted for NR216 Storm Water Compliance. Part of that will be used 

to fund the 50% matching share of the DNR storm water modelling grant.     

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Copy of consultant proposals 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 
 

 

120 of 283



121 of 283



122 of 283



123 of 283



124 of 283



125 of 283



126 of 283



127 of 283



128 of 283



129 of 283



130 of 283



131 of 283



132 of 283



133 of 283



134 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. G., H., & I. 

 

  

TITLE:  G. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-14 repealing Sec. 10-1-13(a)(1) of the Code of Ordinances 

dealing with one-way traffic operations on Hamilton Road from ½ hour before to ½ hour after church services 

at St. Francis Borgia Church; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 05/11/17) 

 

 H. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-15 repealing Sec. 10-1-57(a) of the Code of Ordinances which allows the 

closure of Hamilton Road between Washington Avenue and Hilgen Avenue for play activities; and action 

thereon (Public Works & Sewerage Comm., 05/11/17) 

 

 I. Consider Ordinance No. 2017-16 repealing Sec. 10-1-29(n) of the Code of Ordinances which 

established a no parking zone during school hours to allow for safe and efficient loading and unloading of 

school buses in front of St. Francis School on Hamilton Road; and action thereon (Public Works & Sewerage 

Comm., 05/11/17) 

         

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: When St. Francis school was in operation on Hamilton Road, a number of very specific 

traffic and parking regulations were put in place. These include one-way traffic from ½ hour before to ½ hour 

after church services, the closure of Hamilton Road during recess, and parking restriction in bus loading zones. 

Ordinances 2017-14, 2017-15, and 2017-16 repeal these restrictions.              

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Ordinances 2017-14, 2017-15, and 2017-16.  

  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission recommended removing the traffic and parking restrictions contained in the proposed Ordinances.  

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: N/A.    

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unofficial Minutes of  the May 11, 2017 Public Works & Sewerage Commission meeting 

 Copy of proposed ordinances 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 

 

 
 

 

135 of 283



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION  

 May 11, 2017 PW/SEW20170511-1 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
A meeting of the Public Works and Sewerage Commission of the City of Cedarburg, 
Wisconsin, was held Thursday, May 11, 2017 at Cedarburg City Hall, W63 N645 
Washington Avenue, lower level, room 2.  The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by 
Mayor Kip Kinzel. 
 
Roll Call: Present - Mayor Kip Kinzel, Jim Slavin, Bill Oakes, Sandy Beck, 

Charles Schumacher, Judy Guse, Gary Graham 
  

Excused -  
  

Council Member Mike O’Keefe, Bob Dries 
 

 Also Present - Director of Engineering and Public Works Tom Wiza, 
Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert, Public Works 
Secretary Kim Gordon. Public Works Superintendent 
Joel Bublitz 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Secretary Gordon confirmed that proper legal notice of the meeting had been given. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Schumacher, to 
approve the minutes of April 13, 2017.  Motion carried unanimously with Council Member 
Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
None 
 
ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRPERSON; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Graham to elect 
Commissioner Oakes as the Vice Chairperson.  Motion carried unanimously with Council 
Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
CONSIDER REPEALING SECTION 10-1-13(a) DEALING WITH ONE-WAY TRAFFIC 
OPERATIONS ON HAMILTON ROAD FROM ½ HOUR BEFORE THE ½ HOUR AFTER 
CHURCH SERCIVES AT ST. FRANCIS BORGIA CATHOLIC CHURCH; AND ACTION 
THEREON  
 
Director Wiza explained that this is an outdated ordinance and staff recommends we 
should repeal it.  Motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 
Slavin to recommend to Common Council to repeal Section 10-1-13(a).  Motion carried 
unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
 

136 of 283



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW2017000511-2 
April 13, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
CONSIDER REPEALING SECTION 10-1-57(a) WHICH ALLOWS THE CLOSURE OF 
HAMILTON ROAD BETWEEN WASHINGTON AVENUE AND HILGEN AVENUE FOR 
PLAY ACTIVITIES; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that this is an outdated ordinance and staff recommends we 
should repeal it.  Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Oakes 
to recommend to Common Council to repeal Section 10-1-57(a).  Motion carried 
unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
CONSIDER REPEALING SECTION 10-1-29(n) WHICH ESTABLISHED A NO PARKING 
ZONE DURING SCHOOL HOURS TO ALLOW FOR SAFE AND EFFICIENT LOADING 
AND UNLOADING OF SCHOOL BUSSES IN FRONT OF ST. FRANCIS SCHOOL ON 
HAMILTON ROAD; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that this is an outdated ordinance and staff recommends we 
should repeal it.  Motion made by Commissioner Slavin, seconded by Commissioner Guse 
to recommend to Common Council to repeal Section 10-1-29(n).  Motion carried 
unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
CONSIDER REPEALING SECTION 10-1-34(a)(4) WHICH ESTABLISHED A LOADING 
ZONE IN FRONT OF THE OLD LIBRARY ENTRANCE ON THE WEST SIDE OF 
HANOVER AVENUE; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that this is an outdated ordinance and staff recommends we 
should repeal it.  Motion made by Commissioner Oakes, seconded by Commissioner 
Slavin to recommend to Common Council to repeal Section 10-1-34(a)(4).  Motion carried 
unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
CONSIDER REPEALING SECTION 10-1-34(a)(5) WHICH ESTABLISHED A 242 FOOT 
LOADING ZONE ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF ZEUNERT STREET;  AND ACTION 
THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that this is an outdated ordinance and staff recommends we 
should repeal it.  Motion made by Commissioner Guse, seconded by Commissioner Oakes 
to recommend to Common Council to repeal Section 10-1-34(a)(5).  Motion carried 
unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
REVIEW OZAUKEE COUNTY PROPOSAL TO CHIP SEAL PIONEER ROAD; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained the proposal for the Ozaukee County highway maintenance 
program will be chip sealing portions of Pioneer Road as part of routine maintenance.  The 
county has inquired if the City would want them to include the segment we maintain, which 
is between Washington Avenue and Pioneer Court.  Our cost would be $24,606 and we do 
have $45,000 budgeted for various asphalt pavement repairs.  We could use part of those 
funds to complete the chip sealing on Pioneer Road.   
 
Restriping will need to be done after completion and this will add years of life to the road.   
 

137 of 283



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW2017000511-3 
April 13, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
It is the consensus of the Committee to participate in the project with Ozaukee County 
Highway Department.  This is for chip sealing Pioneer Road from Washington Avenue to 
Pioneer Court in the amount of $24,606.40.  No need to take to Council as this is within the 
budgeted amount.  Motion carried unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and 
Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
REVIEW AND CERTIFY CODE OF ETHICS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Mayor Kinzel, seconded by Commissioner Beck to accept and certify that 
all Commissioners present have read and acknowledge the City of Cedarburg Code of 
Ethics.  Motion carried unanimously with Council Member Mike O’Keefe and 
Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
UPDATE ON PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 
 
Director Wiza stated that Waste Management did not do a good job placing fliers on the 
bins for the change in trash and recycling pick up.  The department is working through this 
with an article in the New Graphic and on the website.   
 
Director Wiza spoke about the 2017 street contract progress schedule and all utility work is 
now complete on Hillcrest Avenue.    
 
Public Works Superintendent Joel Bublitz stated there is still a “punch list” being worked on 
at the new DPW facility.  He is considering June 10, 2017 from noon to 2p.m. for an open 
house.   Hot Dogs and cookies will be served.   
 
Curbside brush pick up has started and informational tags are left on door when people 
putting unacceptable yard waste in the curb and gutter area.   
 
Pot hole filling has started and crack sealing will start soon.   
 
A question was raised about the landscaping around the new building and this also should 
start soon according Superintendent Joel Bublitz.  Breckenridge Landscaping is doing the 
work.   
 
The Commissioners were advised that over 1,025 yard waste cards have been sold.   
 
The cardboard recycling dumpster is a big hit.   
 
UPDATE ON SEWERAGE PLANT OPERATIONS AND DISCUSSION OF MONTHLY 
REPORTS 
 
Wastewater Superintendent Hackert and Director Wiza discussed the WPDES permit and 
the petition for review of final WPDES permit and request for contested case hearing.   
 
Wastewater Superintendent Hackert discussed the effluent data report from April 2017. 
 
They are still short staffed by 1 person and he just posted for the position. 
 

138 of 283



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW2017000511-4 
April 13, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
CMAR was e-mailed to everyone. Need to take to Council but didn’t have it on the agenda 
for action.   
 
Ordinances are still being reviewed. 
 
Wastewater Superintendent Hackert and Director Wiza 6-8 laterals were showing clear 
water leakage on Hillcrest Avenue.   
 
Wastewater Superintendent Hackert and Director Wiza stated that on April 30th it appears 
that the Highland Road lift station was hit by lightning.  There was a back up at BMO Harris 
bank.  Crews were called immediately but there still was some damage to the power 
supply to the pump controls.    
 
Veolia has been difficult to work with on hauling sludge but there are still 5 years left on the 
contract.  Per Director Wiza, we have contacted the City Attorney for advice on how to 
proceed.   
 
IDENTIFY FUTRE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
None  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Oakes moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:01 p.m. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Guse.  Motion carried unanimously with Council Member Mike 
O’Keefe and Commissioner Dries excused.  
 
 
           Kim Gordon 
 Building Inspection/Public Works Secretary 
 

139 of 283



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-14 

 

An Ordinance Repealing Sec. 10-1-13(a)(1) of the Municipal Code 

Dealing With One-Way Traffic Operations on Hamilton Road before and after 

Church Services at St. Francis Borgia 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 10-1-13(a)(1) of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is 

hereby repealed as follows: 

 

SEC. 10-1-13 ONE-WAY STREETS.  
 

(a) Designation of Permanent One-Way Streets.  Pursuant to Sec. 349.10, Wis. Stats., the 

following streets are heretofore declared to be one-way streets, and no person shall 

operate any vehicle thereon except in the indicated directions:  

(1) Upon Hamilton Road in a southeasterly direction between Washington Avenue 

and Hilgen Avenue during the period of time from one-half (1/2) hour before to 

one-half (1/2) hour after Masses and other religious services are conducted at St. 

Francis Borgia Catholic Church.  

(2) Upon Center Street from Washington Avenue to Hanover Avenue, vehicular 

traffic shall move only in a westerly direction.  

(3) Upon Elm Street from Washington Avenue to St. John Avenue, vehicular traffic 

shall move only in a westerly direction.  

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 12
th
 day of June 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

140 of 283



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-15 

 

An Ordinance Repealing Sec. 10-1-57(a) of the Municipal Code 

Which Allows the Closure of Hamilton Road between 

Washington Avenue and Hilgen Avenue for Play Activities 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 10-1-57(a) of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is 

hereby repealed as follows: 

 

SEC. 10-1-57 BARRIERS ACROSS STREETS FOR PLAY PURPOSES. 

  

(a)  The following streets may be set aside during the period indicated for the safety of 

children in coasting or other play activities:  

(1)  Hamilton Road between Washington Avenue and Hilgen Avenue. 

(b)  No street may be set aside pursuant to Subsection (a) if that portion of the street is part of 

any federal, state or county trunk highway system.  

(c)  Such barricades, lights or warning signs as the Council directs shall be erected and 

maintained during the periods that such streets are set aside. The barricades shall be 

erected so as to accommodate access of residents along such streets to their homes to the 

greatest extent possible, consistent with protecting the safety of the children.  

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 12
th
 day of June 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

 

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

141 of 283



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-16 

 

An Ordinance Repealing Sec. 10-1-29(n) of the Municipal Code 

Which Established a No Parking Zone During School Hours in Front of 

St. Francis School on  Hamilton Road 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 10-1-29(n) of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is 

hereby repealed as follows: 

 

SEC. 10-1-29 MISCELLANEOUS RESTRICTED PARKING HOURS ON CERTAIN 

              STREETS.  
 

 (n) No parking, standing, or stopping on the south side of Hamilton Road from its 

intersection with Hilgen Avenue three hundred ten (310) feet northwest on school 

days between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., with the exception of school 

buses which are in the process of loading or unloading school children.  

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 12
th
 day of June 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

 

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

142 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. J. 

 

  

 

TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2017-17 repealing Section 10-1-34(a)(4) which established a loading zone in 

front of the former library entrance on the west side of Hanover Avenue, and repealing Section 10-1-34(a)(5) 

which established a loading zone on the south side of Zeunert Street; and action thereon. (Public Works & 

Sewerage Comm. 5/11/17) 

         

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: Both of these loading zones are no longer in use, but remain in the Municipal Code of 

Ordinances. The paint markings and signage no longer exist.              

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2017-17.    

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission recommended the above referenced loading zones be eliminated.  

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: None.    

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unofficial Minutes of  the May 11, 2017 Public Works/Sewerage Commission meeting 

 Copy of proposed ordinance 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 

 

 

 
 

 

143 of 283



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-17 

 

An Ordinance Repealing Sections 10-1-34(a)(4) and (a)(5) of the Municipal Code 

Which Established Loading Zones in front the former Library  

and the South Side of Zeunert Street 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Sections 10-1-34(a)(4) and (a)(5) of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Cedarburg are hereby repealed as follows: 

 

SEC. 10-1-34 LOADING ZONE PARKING RESTRICTIONS.  

 

(a) General Loading Zones.  No person shall park, stop, or leave standing any vehicle, 

whether attended or unattended, except while loading or unloading passengers, material 

or merchandise from such vehicle on the following streets or parts thereof:  

 

(4) On the west side of Hanover Avenue, commencing at a point one hundred 

forty-five (145) feet north of the north property line of Center Street at the 

intersection of Hanover Avenue extending north thirty (30) feet.  

(5) On the south side of Zeunert Street, commencing one hundred thirty (130) feet 

from the intersecting curb line of Cardinal Avenue and Zeunert Street for a 

distance of two hundred forty-two (242) feet to the west.  

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 12
th
 day of June 2017. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

 

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

144 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:        June 12, 2017                                                     ITEM NO:  9. K. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider  revised Policy FC-10 - Fund Balance Policy; and action thereon 

 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  As part of the audit it was recommended that the City’s policy be updated.  A sentence 

was added to state what fund balances were recognized as committed under section 3. Committed Fund 

Balance. 

 

This statement reflects the current practice. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None 

  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Policy FC-10 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 

 
      

 

 

 

145 of 283



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

FUND BALANCE POLICY 

 

SUBJECT: FUND BALANCE POLICY        FC-10 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

General:  The GOVERNMENT of The City of Cedarburg, organized the accounting 

 systems on a “fund” basis.  A fund is a separate set of accounting records, 

 segregated for purposes of carrying on an activity.  A fund is established for 

 accountability purposes to demonstrate that financial resources are being used 

 only for permitted purposes.  A fund will have “balance sheet” accounts 

 consisting of “assets”, “liabilities” and “fund balance,” and a series of “revenue” 

 and “expenditure” accounts.  A “fund balance” is created or increased when fund 

 expenditures exceed fund revenues.  The balance sheet accounts identify the 

 assets that belong to a fund, such as cash or a grant payment receivable; and what 

 liabilities it owes, such as accounts payable to a supplier.  The difference 

 between the fund’s assets and liabilities equals the “fund balance.”  A positive 

 fund balance represents a financial resource available to finance expenditures of a 

 following fiscal period  A deficit fund balance can only be recovered by having 

 revenues exceed expenditures in a following fiscal period. 

 

Procedure:  The GOVERNMENT of The City of Cedarburg has 5 different fund balance 

 classifications as outline in GASB Statement 54 as follows: 

 

1. Nonspendable Fund Balance: The nonspendable fund balance 

classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 

either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to 

be maintained intact.  The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items 

that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and 

prepaid amounts.  It also includes the long-term amount of loans and notes 

receivable, as well as property acquired for resale.  However, if the use of 

the proceeds from the collection of those receivables or from the sale of 

those properties is restricted, committed, or assigned, then they should be 

included in the appropriate fund balance classifications (restricted, 

committed, or assigned), rather than nonspendable fund balance. 

 

2. Restricted Fund Balance: The restricted fund balance classifications 

should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of 

resources are either: 

 

a.   Externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), 

        grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 

        governments; or 

b.   Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

        legislation.  Enabling legislation, as the term is used in this 

        Statement, authorizes the government to assess, levy, charge, or 

        otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource 

        providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that 

146 of 283



     those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in   

     the legislation.  Legal enforceability means that a government can 

     be compelled by an external party- such as citizens, public interest 

     groups, or the judiciary- to use resources created by enabling 

     legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation. 

 

3. Committed Fund Balance: The committed fund balance classification 

are amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 

constraints imposed by formal action of the Common Council to be 

reported as committed fund balance.  Those committed amounts cannot be 

used for any other purpose unless the City removes or changes the 

specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously 

commit those amounts.  Committed fund balance also should incorporate 

contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund 

have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 

requirements.   

 

In contrast to fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation 

amounts in the committed fund balance, classification may be redeployed 

for other purposes with appropriate due process.  Constraints imposed on 

the use of committed amounts are imposed by the government, separate 

from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue.  Therefore, 

compliance with constraints imposed by the City that commit amounts to 

specific purposes is not considered to be legally enforceable. 

 

The formal action of the Common Council that commits fund balance to a 

specific purpose should occur prior to the end of the reporting period, but 

the amount, if any, which will be subject to the constraint, may be 

determined in the subsequent period.  

 

Committed fund balances include Capital Improvement Fund and Special 

Revenue Funds – Cemetery, Room Tax, Recreation Programs, Swimming 

Pool, Library and Rescue/EMS. 

 

4. Assigned Fund Balance: The assigned fund balance classification are 

amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific 

purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, should be reported as 

assigned fund balance, except for stabilization arrangements.  Intent 

should be expressed by (a) the Common Council or (b) The 

Administrator/Treasurer. 

 

Assigned fund balance includes (a) all remaining amounts (except for 

negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds, other than the 

general fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither 

restricted nor committed and (b) amounts in the general fund that are 

intended to be used for a specific purpose.  By reporting particular 

amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital 

projects, debt service, or permanent fund, the City has assigned those 

147 of 283



amounts to the purposes of the respective funds.  Assignment within the 

general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a 

specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the City 

itself. 

 

An appropriation of existing fund balance to eliminate a projected 

budgetary deficit in the subsequent year’s budget in an amount no greater 

than the projected excess of expected expenditures over expected revenues 

satisfies the criteria to be classified as an assignment of fund balance.  

Assignments should not cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance to 

occur.  

 

5. Unassigned Fund Balance: The unassigned fund balance classification 

is the residual classification for the general fund.  The classification 

represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that 

has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within 

the general fund.  The general fund should be the only fund that reports a 

positive unassigned fund balance amount.  In other governmental funds, if 

expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts 

restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary 

to report a negative unassigned fund balance.  

 

 

       Approved: 01/09/2012 

       Adopted: 01/09/2012 

 

148 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:    June 12, 2017                                                       ITEM NO:  9. L. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider Policy CC-31 – Contacting the City Attorney; and action thereon 

 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The issue came up at the April 25, 2017 Common Council meeting.  In an effort to 

control costs and allocate costs correctly a policy was recommended.   

 

This policy will help me in preparing the bill for payment and also help cut down on costs. 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Lower legal costs due to limiting contact. 

  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Policy CC-31 and excerpt of April 25, 2017 minutes 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 

 
      

 

 

 

149 of 283



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT: CONTACTING THE CITY ATTORNEY   CC-31 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
General:  This policy details the procedures to be followed when it is necessary 

for the Mayor, Council, and Department Heads to contact the 
Municipal Attorney/Municipal Attorney’s Office. It is in the best 
interest of the City to control the number of contacts and questions 
posed to the Municipal Attorney as his/her Office is paid on an hourly 
basis. 

  
Procedures:  The City Administrator shall supervise the use of and monitor the 

costs of the City Attorney in order to control costs and avoid 
duplication while receiving necessary services. 

 
    The following steps shall be taken to research questions raised 

before the Municipal Attorney or his/her Office is contacted: 
 
    1. Council Members and Department Heads seeking guidance, 

advice, or opinions from the Municipal Attorney shall first 
contact the City Administrator or Department Head for 
answers or background information and determine if the 
matter has already been addressed.  

 
    2. In the event the Department Head cannot answer a question, 

the Department Head shall consult with the City Administrator. 
 
    3. If the City Administrator cannot properly respond to the 

question and deems it requires additional interpretation or 
professional advice, the City Administrator or the Mayor may 
contact the City Attorney or authorize the Council Member or 
Department Head to do the same.  The City Administrator or 
authorized Elected Official or Department Head may ask that 
the answer or advice be conveyed in writing.  Staff, other than 
the City Administrator or Department Heads shall not contact 
the Municipal Attorney, without the prior approval of the Mayor 
or the City Administrator. Prior authorization is not required 
when employees of the Police Department contact the 
Municipal Attorney’s office for court related or prosecution 
matters. Members of City Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions shall not contact the Municipal Attorney, without 
the prior approval of the Mayor or the City Administrator. 

 
    4. The Office of the City Attorney represents the City, not the 

individual. 
 
    5. Private Citizens shall not contact the Municipal Attorney’s 

Office for information or legal advice on matters related to the 
City, and such information or legal advice shall not be 

150 of 283



 

provided by the Municipal Attorney’s Office. 
 
         Adopted:  06/12/2017 

151 of 283



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-8 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Council Member Rick Verhaalen (4
th

 District) 

 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board 

 Ad hoc Mayors Enhancement Award Committee 

 

Council Member Mitch Regenfuss (5
th

 District) 

Community Development Authority 

 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 

 Ad hoc Creekwalk Committee 

 

Council Member Patricia Thome (6
th

 District) 

 Light and Water Commission 

Landmarks Commission 

 Ad hoc Cedar Creek Cleanup Committee 

 

Council Member Mike O’Keefe (7
th

 District) 

 (Council President)  

Personnel Committee 

 Public Works & Sewerage Commission 

Festival Committee Liaison  

Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee (Alt.) 

 

CONSIDER POSSIBLE POLICY REGARDING CONTACTING THE MUNICIPAL 

ATTORNEY(S) 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said Council Member Czarnecki expressed interest in the 

development of policy as to who can contact the Municipal Attorney.  She said that the Mayor, 

Council Members, and Department Heads are able to contact the Municipal Attorney; however, it is 

best to contact her prior to determine if the matter has already been addressed or if the question can 

be answered by someone else.  This will help to cut down on legal bills. 

 

Council Member Czarnecki said a policy will ensure the Municipal Attorney is clear as to who can 

contact his/her office.  He said there have been instances of residents contacting the Municipal 

Attorney for legal advice. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Tim Schoonenberg said his office prefers a chain of command.  He said it is 

more efficient if the City Administrator aggregates the questions and issues and forwards them to 

his office.  When his office is contacted by a resident, Council Member, or Department Head it is 

made known that the office is representing the City, not the individual. 

 

The Council directed City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes and the City Attorney’s office to draft a 

policy regarding the contacting of the Municipal Attorney(s) for review and adoption at a future 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

152 of 283



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:     June 12, 2017                                                       ITEM NO:      9.  M. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider claim received from Anita R. Clark for an incident on February 17, 2017; and action 

thereon 

 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Ms. Clark was walking north on Washington Avenue near the Gem Shop and tripped on 

the sidewalk.  The accident occurred at the driveway between W64 N719 and W64 N723 Washington Avenue.  

The City was not aware of any prior problems with this area prior to the incident and when notified the 

sidewalk issue was placed on the saw cutting program for this year.   

 

The claim was reviewed by CVMIC and was recommended that it be denied.  His email is attached.  

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Deny the claim 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $0 to $7,500 depending on decision 

  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Notice of claim, memo to staff and email from Tom Mann from CVMIC 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 

 
    

 

 

 

153 of 283



154 of 283



155 of 283



156 of 283



157 of 283



158 of 283



159 of 283



160 of 283



161 of 283



162 of 283



163 of 283



164 of 283



165 of 283



166 of 283



167 of 283



168 of 283



169 of 283



170 of 283



171 of 283



172 of 283



173 of 283



174 of 283



175 of 283



176 of 283



177 of 283



178 of 283



179 of 283



180 of 283



181 of 283



182 of 283



183 of 283



184 of 283



185 of 283



186 of 283



187 of 283



188 of 283



189 of 283



190 of 283



191 of 283



192 of 283



193 of 283



194 of 283



195 of 283



196 of 283



197 of 283



198 of 283



199 of 283



200 of 283



201 of 283



202 of 283



203 of 283



204 of 283



205 of 283



206 of 283



207 of 283



208 of 283



209 of 283



210 of 283



211 of 283



212 of 283



213 of 283



214 of 283



215 of 283



216 of 283



217 of 283



218 of 283



219 of 283



220 of 283



221 of 283



222 of 283



223 of 283



224 of 283



225 of 283



226 of 283



227 of 283



228 of 283



229 of 283



230 of 283



231 of 283



232 of 283



233 of 283



234 of 283



235 of 283



236 of 283



237 of 283



238 of 283



239 of 283



240 of 283



241 of 283



242 of 283



243 of 283



244 of 283



245 of 283



246 of 283



247 of 283



248 of 283



249 of 283



250 of 283



251 of 283



252 of 283



253 of 283



254 of 283



255 of 283



256 of 283



257 of 283



258 of 283



259 of 283



260 of 283



261 of 283



262 of 283



263 of 283



264 of 283



265 of 283



266 of 283



267 of 283



268 of 283



269 of 283



270 of 283



271 of 283



272 of 283



273 of 283



274 of 283



275 of 283



276 of 283



277 of 283



278 of 283



279 of 283



280 of 283



281 of 283



282 of 283



283 of 283


	Agenda
	CC Minutes 05-08-17
	Board of Appeals- 3 year term
	Economic Development Board – 3 year term
	Mayor appointment as Chair – Council Member Jack Arnett
	Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board – 2 year term

	Blue Sheet - B-3 Text Amendment
	Ord 2017-13 - Text amend B-3 Pergola 2017
	Plan Comm Minutes 05-01-17
	Landmarks Min 04 13 17
	Res 2017-12 - Recognizing Summer Sounds
	Blue Sheet - CMAR
	Res 2017-13 - CMAR
	CMAR 2016
	Influent Flow and Loading
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Ammonia - NH3)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)
	Biosolids Quality and Management
	Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)
	Operator Certification and Education
	Financial Management
	Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems
	Grading Summary

	Blue Sheet - Adlai Horn Park Plan
	Adlai Horn Park Attachments #1
	ADLAI HORN CONCENSUS PLAN REVISED 6-7-17 
	BUDGET 1 ADLAI HORN 6-7-17
	BUDGET 2 ADLAI HORN 6-7-17

	Adlai Horn Park Attachments  #2
	Blue Sheet - Rezoning Referal to Plan Comm
	Rezoning Request - Stroebel
	Blue Sheet - Womens century bike ride July 29
	Map - July 29 Bike Ride
	Blue Sheet - Foot Cycling Event
	Map - Street Closures for Foot Cycling Event
	Blue Sheet - Womens bike ride July 30
	Map - July 30 Bike Rid
	Blue Sheet - Shinery Premise Descr Change
	Shinery premise description request
	Blue Sheet - NR 216 Contract
	NR216 Proposals
	Blue Sheet - Ord 2017-14 15 & 16
	Public Works Minutes 05 11 17
	Ord 2017-14 - Repeal 10-1-13(a)(1) One Way Traffic SFB
	Ord 2017-15 - Repeal 10-1-57(a) Hamilton Rd Closure
	Ord 2017-16 - Repeal 10-1-29(n) No Parking Zone SFB
	Blue Sheet - Ord 2017-17 amending Sec 10-1-34
	Ord 2017-17 - Repeal 10-1-34 Sections - Loading Zones
	Blue Sheet - Policy FC-10
	FC-10 Fund Balance Policy revised
	Blue Sheet - Policy CC-31
	CC-31 - Contacting City Attorney
	CC Min 04-24-17 re Contacting Attorney
	Blue Sheet - Claim of Anita Clark
	Claim Attachments - Anita Clark
	Memo AWH
	Ethics Code
	Bills
	City Administrators Report
	1st Quarter Financial Report
	Building Inspectors Report - May 2017



